
REGULAR MEETING OF THE FLORIN RESOURCE 
 CONSERVATION DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

 
Agenda 

 
Wednesday, February 20, 2019 

 
 6:30 PM 

 
9257 Elk Grove Blvd. 
Elk Grove, CA 95624 

 
Compliance with Government Code Section 54957.5 

 

Public records, including writings related to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the 
Florin Resources Conservation District that are distributed less than 72 hours before the meeting, are 
available for public inspection during normal business hours at the Administration building of Elk Grove 
Water District, located at 9257 Elk Grove Blvd. Elk Grove, California. In addition, such writings may be 
posted, whenever possible, on the Elk Grove Water District website at www.egwd.org.    
         
The Board will discuss all items on the agenda, and may take action on any item listed as an “Action” item.  
The Board may discuss items that do not appear on the agenda, but will not act on those items unless there 
is a need to take immediate action and the Board determines by a two-thirds (2/3) vote that the need for 
action arose after posting of the agenda. 
  
If necessary, the Meeting will be adjourned to Closed Session to discuss items on the agenda listed under 
“Closed Session.” At the conclusion of the Closed Session, the meeting will reconvene to “Open Session.” 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
Public Comment – Please complete a Request to Speak Form if you wish to address the Board.   
Members of the audience may comment on matters that are not included on the agenda.  Each person will 
be allowed three (3) minutes, or less if a large number of requests are received on a particular subject.  No 
action may be taken on a matter raised under "Public Comment" until the matter has been specifically 
included on an agenda as an action item.  Items listed on the agenda will be opened for public comment as 
they are considered by the Board of Directors.   

 
1. Proclamations and Announcements 
 
Associate Director Comment 
 
Public Comment 

 
2. Consent Calendar (Stefani Phillips, Secretary and Patrick Lee, Treasurer) 

a. Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of January 16, 2019 
b. Minutes of Special Board Meeting of January 30, 2019 
c. Warrants Paid – January, 2019 
d. Active Accounts – January, 2019 
e. Bond Covenant Status for FY 2018- 19 – January, 2019 
f. Revenues and Expenses – Actual vs Budget FY 2018- 19 – January, 2019 
g. Cash Accounts – January, 2019 
h. Consultants Expenses – January, 2019 
i. Major Capital Improvement Projects – January, 2019 

  
Associate Director Comment 
 



 
Public Comment 
 

Recommended Action:      Approve Florin Resource Conservation District Consent 
Calendar items a-i. 

 

3. Committee Meetings (Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary) 
          

Associate Director Comment 
 
Public Comment   

 

4. Elk Grove Water District Operations Report – January 2019 
     (Mark J. Madison, General Manager) 
 

Associate Director Comment 
 
Public Comment   

 
5. Truck Purchase for Replacement of Truck #407 

(Bruce Kamilos, Assistant General Manager) 
 

Associate Director Comment 
 

Public Comment    
 

Recommended Action:      Authorize the General Manager to execute a purchase 
order in the amount of $90,489.41, including tax and 
license, with Harrold Ford to purchase a utility truck to 
replace Truck #407. 

 

6. Outside Agency Meetings Report (Mark J. Madison, General Manager) 
 

Associate Director Comment 
 

Public Comment 
 

7. Legislative Report (Sarah Jones, Program Manager) 
 

Associate Director Comment 
 

Public Comment 
 

8.  Directors Comments 
 
9.  Closed Session 
         a.   PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Section 54957)                

          Title: General Manager 
 
 

Adjourn to Regular Meeting – March 20, 2019            

2



AGENDA ITEM No. 2 

February 20, 2019 
 
 
TO:  Chairperson and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM: Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary and Patrick Lee, Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT: CONSENT CALENDAR  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
It is recommended that the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors 
approve Florin Resource Conservation District Consent Calendar items a – i.    
 
 

SUMMARY 

 
Consent Calendar items a – i are standing items on the Regular Board Meeting agenda.  
 
By this action, the Board will approve Florin Resource Conservation District Consent 
Calendar items a – i.  
 

 

DISCUSSION 

 
Background 
 
Consent Calendar items are standing items on the Regular Board Meeting agenda.    
 
Present Situation 
 
Consent Calendar items a – i are standing items on the Regular Board Meeting agenda. 
 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

 
There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report.  
 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 

 

Fiscal stability is in conformity with the District’s Business Practice goals of the 2012-2017 
Strategic Plan. 
 
 

3



January 16, 2019 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR  

Page 2 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 2 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

 

There is no financial impact associated with this report.   
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
    
 

                                                                                     

STEFANI PHILLIPS  
BOARD SECRETARY  
 
And  
 
 
 
PATRICK LEE 
TREASURER 
 
Attachments 

4



               

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried.                                                MINUTES OF THE REGULAR FRCD BOARD MEETING FOR January 16, 2019 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE  
FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

 BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

Wednesday, January 16, 2019 
        
The regular meeting of the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors was called 
to order at 6:30 p.m. by Tom Nelson, Chairperson, at 9257 Elk Grove Blvd., Elk Grove, CA. 
 
Call to Order, Roll Call, and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Directors Present: Bob Gray, Tom Nelson, Lisa Medina, Sophia Scherman 
Directors Absent:    Elliot Mulberg 
Staff Present:             Mark Madison, General Manager; Bruce Kamilos, Assistant 

General Manager; Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary; Patrick Lee, 
Treasurer; Donella Murillo, Finance Supervisor and Sarah Jones, 
Program Manager 

Staff Absent:  None 
Associate Directors Present:  Shahid Chaudhry 
Associate Directors Absent: None 
General Counsel Present: Ren Nosky, Nosky Legal Group 
 
Public Comment 
Suzanne Peschi commented, when looking at the financials provided in the board packet there 
was no mention of the Florin Resource Conservation District (FRCD) Donation Fund. She stated, 
the public should see tracking of the donation fund on a monthly basis, accounting of these funds, 
solicitation of funds, etc. The FRCD Board of Directors (Board) and staff responded that the 
District does not have a donation fund. General Manager Mark Madison stated if the District did 
have a donation fund, it would be reported in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR). 
 
1. Proclamations and Announcements 
       Program Manager Sarah Jones announced the grant the FRCD was awarded through the 

Department of Conservation was amended allowing funds to be used to purchase booklets 
for the public for water conservation. A discussion took place on how to distribute the booklets 
to the public. 

 
 Tony Tillman, National Resources Conservation Service mentioned the Natural Resources 

Conservation Service (NRCS) is exempt from the government shutdown. He provided an 
update to the Board on current NRCS activities. 

 
2.    Consent Calendar 

a. Regular Board Meeting Minutes of December 19, 2018 
b. Warrants Paid – December, 2018 
c. Active Accounts – December, 2018 
d. Bond Covenant Status – December, 2018 
e. Revenues and Expenses – December, 2018 
f. Cash Accounts – December, 2018  
g. Consultants Expenses – December, 2018 
h.  Major Capital Improvement Projects – December, 2018        
 
Lynn Wheat commented on the warrants related to working with title companies, asking why 
the District is working with them.  Chairperson Tom Nelson responded, the District is not 
working with title companies, but instead these refunds are on behalf of District customers 
who have sold their properties.  
 

5

STEFANI
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#      a



2 

 

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried.                                                MINUTES OF THE REGULAR FRCD BOARD MEETING FOR January 16, 2019 

 

  

Ms. Wheat also asked about the property listed in closed session and if it was considered in 
the rate study. Mr. Madison responded that the District discussed the possibility of purchasing 
a new building as part of the rate study, especially with the Community Advisory Committee 
(CAC). He mentioned that he cannot discuss the topics agendized in closed session, but 
noted that nothing has been solidified or commitments made. 
 
MSC (Gray/Medina) to approve FRCD Consent Calendar items a-h. 4/0: Ayes: Gray, Medina, 
Nelson, and Scherman. 

 
3. Committee Meetings 
 There were no committee meetings held in the month of December. 
 
4. Florin Resource Conservation District Election of Officers - 2019 

Board Secretary Stefani Phillips presented the item to the Board. In summary, each year a 
Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson are elected by the Board to serve as officers of the FRCD.  

 
MSC (Medina/Scherman) to nominate Tom Nelson as Chairperson. 4/0: Ayes: Gray, Medina, 
Nelson, and Scherman. 
 
MSC (Scherman/Medina) to nominate Bob Gray as Vice-Chairperson. 4/0: Ayes: Gray, 
Medina, Nelson, and Scherman. 
 

5. Florin Resource Conservation District 2019 Committee Appointments and 
Outside Agency Representation 
Ms. Phillips presented the item to the Board, providing the various committees and various 
outside agency representation. The Board discussed the various committees.  
 
Mr. Nelson informed the public it is ok for three (3) board members to be on a committee 
because the meetings are standing meetings, which are agendized, posted, and open to the 
public. 
 
The new committees are as shown: 

 
The Board ratified the appointment of Director Lisa Medina, Director Elliot Mulberg and 
Director Sophia Scherman to be seated to the Conservation Committee; to appoint 
Chairperson Tom Nelson to be seated as an alternate to the Conservation Committee; to 
appoint Vice-Chairperson Bob Gray and Director Medina to be seated to the Infrastructure 
Committee to appoint Chairperson Nelson to be seated as an alternate to the Infrastructure 
Committee. 4:0 Ayes: Gray, Medina, Nelson, Scherman 
 
 
 

Finance – FRCD/EDC/EGWD: All Board Members 
 

Conservation Committee – FRCD: 
 
 
Alternate: 
 

Lisa Medina 
Elliot Mulberg 
Sophia Scherman 
Tom Nelson 

Infrastructure Committee – EGWD:  
 
Alternate: 

Bob Gray 
Lisa Medina 
Tom Nelson 

6



3 

 

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried.                                                MINUTES OF THE REGULAR FRCD BOARD MEETING FOR January 16, 2019 

 

  

The new outside agency representation are as shown: 
 
ACWA/JPIA – Representative of EGWD Tom Nelson 

 
California Special District Association (CSDA) Elliot Mulberg 

(Requires ratification) 
 

Sacramento Local Agency Formation 
Commission (LAFCO) 

Elliot Mulberg 
(Not yet appointed) 
 

Regional Water Authority (RWA) Board of 
Directors 
 

Tom Nelson 
Mark Madison (Alternate) 

Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority   Mark Madison (Primary) 
Bruce Kamilos (Alternate) 

 
MSC (Scherman/Medina) to appoint Chairperson Tom Nelson to be a to the ACWA/JPIA, 
representing Elk Grove Water District; to appoint Director Elliot Mulberg to be a 
representative to the California Special District Association; to appoint Director Mulberg to 
be a representative to the Advisory Committee to the Sacramento Local Agency Formation 
Commission; to appoint Chairperson Nelson to the Regional Water Authority Board of 
Supervisors and appoint Mr. Madison as an; and to appoint Mr. Madison to be a 
representative to the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority and appoint Assistant 
General Manager Bruce Kamilos as an alternate. 4:0 Ayes: Gray, Medina, Nelson, Scherman 
 

6.  Elk Grove Water District Operations Report – December 2018 
Mr. Madison presented the Elk Grove Water District (EGWD) Operations Report – December 
2018 to the Board. 
 
Summary: 
• There were no door tags and shutoffs in December due to the holidays. 
• There were three pressure complaints; one in Service Area 1 and one in Service Area 2. 

All three were unsubstantiated. 
• There were six water quality complaints in December.  Three were legitimate and resulted 

from an inadvertent closure of a transmission main valve causing an upset of sediment in 
the main.  This area was then flushed and cleaned.  The other three were unconfirmed. 

• 160 hydrants were checked. The District’s hydrant maintenance target is set at 135 per 
month (each hydrant is checked once per year). 

• 161 valves were exercised. The District’s valve exercising target is set at 120 per month 
(every valve once per 3 years). 

• Wells 11D, 8, and 9 were used as the main sources of supply for Service Area 1.  Wells 
1D, 4D, 13 and 14D were hardly used and Well 3 remained offline.  

• Production for Service Area 1 dropped by about 34 million gallons from November.  The 
highest day demand (3.4 million gallons) occurred on December 26 as a result of the main 
line break near the CSD Administration building. 

• Total customer usage for EGWD (SA1 and SA2) also dropped by about 57 million gallons 
from last month and was also about the same compared to December, 2017. 

• The Static and Pumping Water level charts have no new data.  The 2019 1st quarter 
measurements are being taken this week and will be presented at our next regular Board 
meeting. 

• All required sampling was performed with no anomalies. Carbon dioxide measurements 
were taken at our shallow wells to assist in evaluating the air entrainment problem at Well 
3. 

7



4 

 

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried.                                                MINUTES OF THE REGULAR FRCD BOARD MEETING FOR January 16, 2019 

 

  

• All required regulatory reports were submitted on time and there were no violations of any 
regulatory requirements.  These included quarterly reports to the State for THHM’s and 
HAA5. 

• All preventative maintenance activities have been performed in compliance with our 
Standard Operating Procedures. 

• Backflow prevention program. As of the end of December, we had 15 delinquent 
customers. 

• We had 2 formal safety meetings in December. 
• Service Line Replacements – 12 service lines were replaced in December and 169 

remain. 
• There no service line leaks in December. 
• We had one main line leak in December and this was caused by latent settlement of the 

ductile iron pipe.  
• Pressures in Service Area 1 continued to remain stable in the 50-70 psi range.  Pressures 

in Service Area 2 increased by about 10 psi. 
 

 Mr. Gray asked for an update on the booster pump for the Variable Frequency Drives (VFD). 
Mr. Kamilos responded, the District is at 90% completion on the improvement plans and is 
waiting on the engineer to provide draft copies of the plans for review. In summary, the plans 
are for two (2) booster pumps, meaning there will be a total of three (3) VFDs, which should 
help the District see very steady pressures in the distribution system during the higher 
demand months. 

 
7. Elk Grove Water District Fiscal Year 2018-19 Quarterly Operating Budget Status 

Report 
Financial Manager Patrick Lee presented the Fiscal Year (FY) 2018-19 Quarterly Capital 
Reserve Status Report to the Board. 
 
In summary, the revenues collected through the second quarter of the fiscal year total 
$8,015,308, which is 54.08% of the $14,821,253 annual budget. The revenues are $231,185 
or 2.97% above the same quarter of the prior fiscal year. This is due mainly to the 3.0% 
revenue adjustment that went into effect on January 1, 2018. 
 
Mr. Gray asked if the service line replacements will be completed by the end of this fiscal 
year, or if it will be carried over to FY 2019-20. Mr. Kamilos responded, he believes the District 
will get it done. 
 
Associate Director Shahid Chaudhry asked what bond retirement meant. Mr. Lee responded 
bond retirement is annualizing the District’s debt service payment. 
 

8. Elk Grove Water District Fiscal Year 2018-19 Quarterly Capital Reserve Status 
Report 
Mr. Lee presented the FY 2018-19 Quarterly Capital Reserve Status Report to the Board. 

 
 In summary, through the second quarter of FY 2018-19, the District expended $173,809 for 

capital projects leaving a remaining total reserve balance at December 31, 2018 of 
$13,965,523. Total amount expended of $173,809 includes $143,137 of expenditures related 
to projects carrying over from the prior year, but not budgeted for in the FY 2018-19 Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP). 

 
 Mr. Gray questioned if the District had any unrestricted funds.  Mr. Lee informed him the 

District does not. 
 

8



5 

 

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried.                                                MINUTES OF THE REGULAR FRCD BOARD MEETING FOR January 16, 2019 

 

  

9. Outside Agency Meetings Report 
Mr. Lee, Mrs. Jones, Mr. Madison and Mr. Kamilos spoke in regard to the various outside 
agency meetings they attended. 
 
Mr. Lee mentioned he and Finance Supervisor Donella Murillo attended the California 
Society of Municipal Financial Officers (CSMFO) conference January 7, 2019 through 
January 10, 2019. In summary, a huge portion of the conference was dedicated to California 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) providing new information to its members. 
Mr. Lee mentioned CalPERS has some new strategies to help public agencies reduce their 
unfunded liabilities. He stated he will be scheduling a meeting with the District’s actuary to 
discuss these options and will get back to the Board once he has gathered more information. 
 
Mrs. Jones presented on the Regional Water Efficiency Program Advisory Committee that 
she attended on January 8, 2019. In summary, during this quarterly meeting members 
focused on water loss technology and satellite technology. 
 
Mr. Madison spoke regarding the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority (SCGA) 
meeting that he, Mr. Nelson, and Mr. Kamilos attended on January 9, 2019. In summary, 
there was a presentation by a GEI consultant regarding modeling efforts and provided insight 
pursuant to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act implementation. An alarming 
issue from this presentation was the various locations it showed that might have problems 
and which areas might exceed certain thresholds or triggers. During the meeting, SCGA 
started to identify specific actions that might need to be taken for problem areas. Mr. Madison 
expressed concern on behalf of the District that it is too early to talk about specific actions. 
He mentioned that the area that Ms. Peschi lives in was one of the problem areas that SCGA 
might restrict groundwater pumping by land owners.  
 
There was also a discussion and presentation from Regional Water Authority (RWA) on 
regional groundwater banking efforts, which the SCGA is not on point with. Mr. Madison 
mentioned, he believes the region needs to establish the rules and parameters on how to 
operate a bank before opening it. 
 
Mr. Kamilos spoke regarding the RWA Regional Water Reliability Planning Meeting he 
attended on January 9, 2019. In summary, this meeting discussed the groundwater bank 
RWA is working on.  RWA has developed a list of questions anticipated from the public, board 
members, and interested parties. Mr. Kamilos mentioned the groundwater bank is complex 
to understand and RWA wants to make sure everyone is clear on what is being planned. At 
this time, individuals are reviewing the questions and coming up with more. He informed the 
Board, to join the effort comes at a cost to those that want to participate, with the District’s 
costs being $15,000. RWA will be sending out draft agreements to those who want to 
participate within the next month. 
 
Mrs. Jones spoke regarding the RWA Legislative Advocacy Meeting she attended on 
January 16, 2019. In summary, the meeting talked about the Low Income Rate Assistance 
(LIRA) Plan report.  The meeting focused on funding mechanisms, as well as benefit 
distributions for LIRA.  Mrs. Jones mentioned that comments for this plan are due February 
1, 2019 and a letter of the comments will be going out. She mentioned she will present this 
letter at the next Regular Board Meeting. 
 
Mr. Madison commented on the LIRA program, stating the State Water Resource Control 
Board (Water Board) has proposed in the report, how to assess taxes to provide money for 
the low-income people in need. He mentioned the two ways include a sales tax on bottled 

9



6 

 

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried.                                                MINUTES OF THE REGULAR FRCD BOARD MEETING FOR January 16, 2019 

 

  

water and a quarter percent personal income tax on individuals and families making over a 
million dollars. 
 
Mr. Gray asked about the bottled water tax.  Mrs. Jones responded, the Water Board is 
proposing to get rid of the exemption that allows bottled water to be sold as a food item. 
Ms. Peschi commented on the regional water banking project, correcting what was discussed 
related to water transfers. She also commented on Mr. Madison’s comment regarding the 
GEI presentation, mentioning she did not recognize herself or Agricultural-Residential (Ag-
Res) as being in the areas considered problematic.  
 

10.  Directors Comments 
 Mr. Nelson explained the upcoming months for meetings.  He mentioned there will be 

meetings regarding the Employee Policy Manual, Strategic Plan and Budget.  
 
11. Closed Session 

No reportable action was taken. 
 
Adjourn to Regular Board Meeting on February 20, 2019 at 6:30 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

Stefani Phillips 
 
Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary 
AK/SP 

10



               

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried.                                               MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL FRCD BOARD MEETING FOR January 30, 2019 

 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE  
FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

 BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

Wednesday, January 30, 2019 
        
The special meeting of the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors was called 
to order at 6:30 p.m. by Tom Nelson, Chairperson, at 9257 Elk Grove Blvd., Elk Grove, CA. 
 
Call to Order, Roll Call, and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Directors Present: Bob Gray, Tom Nelson, Lisa Medina, Elliot Mulberg, Sophia 

Scherman  
Directors Absent:    None 
Staff Present:             Mark Madison, General Manager; Bruce Kamilos, Assistant 

General Manager; Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary; Patrick Lee, 
Treasurer; Donella Murillo, Finance Supervisor, Richard Salas, 
Water Distribution Supervisor; Sean Hinton, Interim Water 
Distribution Supervisor; Sarah Jones, Program Manager; Steve 
Shaw, Water Treatment Supervisor; Thomas Dainat 

Staff Absent:  None 
Associate Directors Present:  Shahid Chaudhry  
Associate Directors Absent: None 
General Counsel Present: None  
Consultants Present: Michael Ward, HighBar Consulting 
 

1. Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority Fiscal Year 2018-19 Contribution – 
Request for Reconsideration 

General Manager Mark Madison presented the agenda item to the Florin Resource 
Conservation District (FRCD) Board of Directors (Board), providing a timeline and 
background.  

 
There was a lengthy discussion on whether the District should reconsider paying the 
remaining contribution amount to Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority (SCGA).  
 
Director Sophia Scherman commented the District has been overpaying for some time. She 
asked what “a member not in good standing” means to SCGA.  Mr. Madison responded, in 
SCGA’s opinion, the District is no longer a valid member because of the unpaid dues.  
 
Mrs. Scherman then asked how it would hurt the District to be suspended. Mr. Madison 
responded, in the current policy there are no procedures or steps to reinstate members after 
they have been suspended.  
 
Mrs. Scherman asked if the SCGA’s policy was legitimate and if it was legal to do what they 
did. Mr. Madison responded, yes, because it was adopted by the majority of the SCGA Board. 
He commented that in the District’s General Counsel’s opinion, it was not legitimate the way 
SCGA adopted the policy. 
 
Director Lisa Medina expressed her opinions regarding paying the requested contribution to 
SCGA. She asked if the District could pay under protest. Mr. Madison responded yes, stating 
his recommendation would be to stay at the table and pay the contribution amount under 
protest.  
 
Assistant General Manager Bruce Kamilos stated he thinks the District should pay the 
contribution to stay a member of SCGA. He believes Mr. Madison’s voice has made a small 
impact at the SCGA meetings and staying a member of SCGA is good for the Districts 
customers.  
 

11

STEFANI
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#      b



2 

 

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried.                                               MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL FRCD BOARD MEETING FOR January 30, 2019 

 

  

Vice Chairperson Bob Gray mentioned he did not see how staying with SCGA directly affects 
customers.  
 
Director Elliot Mulberg expressed his opinion, stating he feels the District should pay the 
contribution and be at the table. 
 
Ms. Scherman commented she will support the contribution payment this year, but will not 
support it next year. 
 
Staff was directed to pay the full amount of the contribution under protest. 

 
MSC (Mulberg/Medina) to reconsider the amounts withheld from the payment of the Fiscal 
Year 2018-19 contribution to the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority. 4/1: Ayes: 
Gray, Medina, Mulberg, and Nelson Noes: Scherman 

 

2. 2019 – 2023 Strategic Plan Board Workshop #1 

Program Manager Sarah Jones presented the item to the Board and introduced Michael 
Ward from HighBar Consulting to lead the Strategic Plan Board Workshop. 
 
In summary, the Strategic Plan Board Workshop #1 focused on developing a framework for 
the 2019-2023 Strategic Plan, discussing and exploring leadership team priorities in context 
with the Board priorities, and establishing a long term vision for the FRCD/Elk Grove Water 
District (EGWD).    

 
 

Adjourn to Regular Board Meeting on February 20, 2019 at 6:30 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

Stefani Phillips 
Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary 
AK/SP 

12



E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n

C
lo

th
in

g
 R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t

D
a

ily
 T

a
s
k
s
/H

e
lp

 T
ic

k
e

ts

A
n

n
u

a
l 
B

o
n

d
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o
n

 -
 2

0
1

4
 S

e
ri
e
s
 A

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

I.
T

. 
S

e
rv

e
r 

R
o

o
m

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
A

/C
 U

n
it

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

R
e

p
a

ir
s
 &

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 -
 B

ra
v
o

 V
a

c
to

r

F
u

e
l

C
P

A
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

L
e

g
a

l 
-D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

te
ri
a
ls

 &
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
 -

 B
u

llh
e

a
d

s

T
ra

s
h

 &
 R

e
c
y
c
le

 -
 M

O
C

/A
D

M
IN

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 H
e

lp

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 A

p
p

re
c
ia

ti
o

n
 C

h
ri
s
tm

a
s
 L

u
n

c
h

e
o

n
 -

  
R

e
n

ta
l 
o

f 
T

a
b

le
s
 &

 C
h

a
ir
s

C
o

n
tr

a
c
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 -

 A
B

R
A

 P
a

y
ro

ll 
&

 H
R

 S
u

it
e

P
ilo

t 
F

lu
s
h

in
g

 P
ro

g
ra

m

R
a

te
s
 &

 F
e

e
s
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
B

ill
in

g
 I
n

s
e

rt
s

R
e

p
a

ir
s
 &

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 -
 2

0
2

 A
L

F
A

 V
a

c
to

r

R
e

p
a

ir
s
 &

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 -
 T

ru
c
k
 #

4
0

9

O
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

s
 -

 S
a

fe
ty

 C
lo

th
in

g
 f

o
r 

F
ie

ld
 C

re
w

s

A
lc

o
h

o
l 
&

 D
ru

g
 T

e
s
ti
n
g

 -
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
F

e
e

s

R
e

im
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

a
y
ro

ll 

M
e

d
ic

a
l 
B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 -
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

9

C
h

e
c

k
 H

is
to

ry
 R

e
p

o
rt

 1
/1

/2
0

1
9

 t
o

 1
/3

1
/2

0
1

9

E
lk

 G
ro

v
e

 W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

C
h

e
c

k

N
u

m
b

e
r

C
h

e
c

k

D
a

te

V
e

n
d

o
r

N
u

m
b

e
r

N
a

m
e

C
h

e
c

k
 

C

0
4

8
2

6
0

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

A
M

A
Z

O
N

A
M

A
Z

O
N

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
2

6
.9

3
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

6
1

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

A
R

C
A

R
C

4
5

.9
5

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

6
2

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

B
 W

A
G

N
E

B
R

A
N

D
O

N
 W

A
G

N
E

R
2

1
5

.4
9

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

6
3

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

B
G

 S
O

L
U

S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 B
G

 I
N

C
.

7
,7

2
3

.7
5

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

6
4

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

B
O

N
Y

2
T

H
E

 B
A

N
K

 O
F

 N
E

W
 Y

O
R

K
 M

E
L

L
O

N
2

,0
5

0
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

6
5

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

C
C

P
P

M
C

C
P

P
M

4
2

6
.6

8
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

6
6

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

C
F

F
N

T
F

ID
E

L
IT

Y
 N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 T
IT

L
E

2
6

3
.5

2
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

6
7

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

C
O

A
C

C
O

O
P

E
R

 O
A

T
E

S
 A

IR
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

IN
G

8
,5

8
2

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

6
8

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

C
R

F
 C

R
Y

C
R

Y
S

T
A

L
 S

IL
V

A
1

5
6

.8
9

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

6
9

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

C
R

F
 J

E
A

J
E

A
N

N
E

T
T

E
 W

O
N

G
 M

E
D

IN
A

7
0

3
.6

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

7
0

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

C
R

F
 N

T
N

O
R

T
H

 A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 T

IT
L

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

2
3

.3
9

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

7
1

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

C
R

F
 N

T
N

O
R

T
H

 A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 T

IT
L

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

1
7

6
.6

1
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

7
2

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

C
R

F
 O

C
O

L
D

 R
E

P
U

B
L

IC
 T

IT
L

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

1
8

.1
6

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

7
3

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

C
R

F
F

T
C

F
IR

S
T

 A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 T

IT
L

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

1
2

.1
2

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

7
4

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

C
R

F
IR

2
F

IR
S

T
 A

M
E

R
IC

A
N

 T
IT

L
E

3
4

.0
3

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

7
5

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

D
IT

C
H

 3
D

IT
C

H
 W

IT
C

H
 W

E
S

T
7

5
6

.3
2

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

7
6

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

E
G

 F
O

R
D

E
L

K
 G

R
O

V
E

 F
O

R
D

1
5

7
.8

6
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

7
7

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

IN
T

 S
T

A
IN

T
E

R
S

T
A

T
E

 O
IL

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
1

,2
7

7
.5

6
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

7
8

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

J
A

N
 P

R
O

J
A

N
-P

R
O

 C
L

E
A

N
IN

G
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 O
F

 
2

5
5

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

7
9

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

M
G

O
M

A
C

IA
S

 G
IN

I 
&

 O
'C

O
N

N
E

L
L

 L
L

P
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

8
0

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

N
O

S
K

Y
N

O
S

K
Y

 L
E

G
A

L
 G

R
O

U
P

1
,7

0
0

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

8
1

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

P
A

C
E

P
A

C
E

 S
U

P
P

L
Y

 C
O

R
P

1
,8

6
2

.8
5

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

8
2

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

R
E

P
U

B
L

I
R

E
P

U
B

L
IC

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 #

9
2

2
1

,2
3

9
.5

2
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

8
3

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

R
O

T
H

R
O

T
H

 S
T

A
F

F
IN

G
 C

O
M

P
A

N
IE

S
, 

L
.P

.
1

,0
6

1
.6

8
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

8
4

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

5
3

8
.9

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

8
5

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

S
O

U
T

H
S

I
S

O
U

T
H

S
ID

E
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 R

E
N

T
A

L
S

, 
6

9
4

.2
5

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

8
6

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

S
O

U
T

H
W

E
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
T

 A
N

S
W

E
R

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

, 
2

4
9

.7
1

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

8
7

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

U
N

IT
E

D
U

N
IT

E
D

 S
IT

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

3
0

2
.8

5
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

8
8

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

W
A

C
W

A
C

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

 P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

7
3

1
.2

5
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

8
9

1
/2

/2
0

1
9

W
E

S
T

 Y
O

W
E

S
T

 Y
O

S
T

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S
, 

IN
C

2
,7

4
0

.5
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

9
0

1
/3

/2
0

1
9

D
A

T
A

P
R

O
D

A
T

A
P

R
O

S
E

 L
L

C
1

,3
3

1
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

9
1

1
/3

/2
0

1
9

D
IT

C
H

 3
D

IT
C

H
 W

IT
C

H
 W

E
S

T
7

6
0

.8
4

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

9
2

1
/3

/2
0

1
9

E
G

 F
O

R
D

E
L

K
 G

R
O

V
E

 F
O

R
D

6
6

3
.7

2
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

9
3

1
/3

/2
0

1
9

F
A

S
T

E
N

A
F

A
S

T
E

N
A

L
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

3
7

.1
7

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

9
4

1
/3

/2
0

1
9

F
R

O
N

T
 C

F
R

O
N

T
IE

R
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
2

3
9

.5
6

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

9
5

1
/3

/2
0

1
9

H
A

N
F

O
R

D
H

A
N

D
F

O
R

D
 S

A
N

D
 &

 G
R

A
V

E
L

, 
IN

C
4

5
0

.8
6

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

9
6

1
/3

/2
0

1
9

J
O

E
'S

J
O

E
'S

 W
O

R
K

 W
E

A
R

, 
IN

C
1

,6
9

4
.1

6
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

9
7

1
/3

/2
0

1
9

K
A

IS
E

R
2

K
A

IS
E

R
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 P
L

A
N

1
1

5
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
2

9
8

1
/3

/2
0

1
9

P
E

S
T

P
E

S
T

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 C

E
N

T
E

R
 I

N
C

8
0

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
2

9
9

1
/3

/2
0

1
9

P
R

E
 A

L
L

P
R

E
F

E
R

R
E

D
 A

L
L

IA
N

C
E

, 
IN

C
1

,3
6

6
.8

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

0
0

1
/3

/2
0

1
9

S
IG

N
 C

E
T

H
E

 S
IG

N
 C

E
N

T
E

R
6

0
.5

1
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

0
1

1
/3

/2
0

1
9

W
H

IT
E

H
D

S
 W

H
IT

E
 C

A
P

 C
O

N
S

T
 S

U
P

P
L

Y
4

5
0

.5
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

0
2

1
/4

/2
0

1
9

W
IL

S
O

N
M

A
R

C
E

L
L

 W
IL

S
O

N
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

0
3

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
A

C
W

A
J
P

I
 C

B
&

T
/ 

A
C

W
A

-J
P

IA
6

4
,8

9
4

.5
7

A
u

to

13

AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#     c



W
o

rk
e

rs
' C

o
m

p
e

n
s
a

ti
o
n

 -
 2

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r

D
a

ily
 T

a
s
k
s
/H

e
lp

 T
ic

k
e

ts

S
a

m
p

lin
g

 -
 T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

A
d

o
b

e
 A

c
ro

b
a

t 
P

ro
 -

 T
e

c
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

V
o

id
 -

 D
u

p
lic

a
te

 P
a

y
m

e
n

t

V
o

id
 -

 D
u

p
lic

a
te

 P
a

y
m

e
n

t

E
th

e
rn

e
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

/P
h

o
n

e
s
-M

O
C

S
a

c
ra

m
e

n
to

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

a
te

r 
B

ill
in

g
s
 -

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

&
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
8

C
lo

th
in

g
 R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 M
e

te
r 

D
e

p
o

s
it
 R

e
fu

n
d

S
o

ft
w

a
re

 P
ro

g
ra

m
s
, 
S

u
p

p
lie

s
 -

 F
in

a
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

a
c
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 
M

e
a

ls

M
a

te
ri
a
ls

 &
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
 -

 U
ti
lit

y
 C

re
w

M
a

te
ri
a
ls

 &
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
 -

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

M
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 D
u

e
s
, 
S

a
fe

ty
, 
M

e
a

ls

T
ra

in
in

g
, 
A

D
A

 S
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 M
a

te
ri
a
ls

, 
E

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 A

p
p

re
c
ia

ti
o

n
 C

h
ri
s
tm

a
s
 L

u
n

c
h

e
o

n

 D
ig

it
a

l 
A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 C
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 -
 E

v
e

n
t 
N

o
ti
c
e

s

M
e

te
re

d
 B

ill
in

g
 -

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
8

R
e

p
a

ir
s
 &

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 -
 T

ru
c
k
 #

4
0

9

A
n

n
u

a
l 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 D

u
e

s
 -

 M
a

rk
 J

. 
M

a
d

is
o

n

R
e

fu
n

d
 W

a
te

r 
P

e
rm

it
 D

e
p

o
s
it

M
a

te
ri
a
ls

 &
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
 -

 T
re

a
tm

e
n

t

In
fr

a
re

d
 &

 M
e

g
g

e
r 

T
e

s
ti
n
g

 -
 T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

C
lo

th
in

g
 R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t

T
ra

v
e

l 
R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
C

S
M

F
O

 -
 H

o
te

l,
 C

a
r 

R
e

n
ta

l

M
a

te
ri
a
ls

 &
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
 -

 B
u

llh
e

a
d

s

P
o

s
ta

g
e

 -
 A

D
M

IN

R
e

p
a

ir
s
 &

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 -
 T

ru
c
k
 #

4
1

0

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 H
e

lp

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

0
4

8
3

0
4

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
A

C
W

A
J
P

I
 C

B
&

T
/ 

A
C

W
A

-J
P

IA
1

6
,7

7
3

.6
9

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

0
5

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
A

F
L

A
C

A
F

L
A

C
1

,8
7

6
.5

1
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

0
6

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
A

M
A

Z
O

N
A

M
A

Z
O

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

5
4

.9
9

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

0
7

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
B

G
 S

O
L

U
S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
 B

Y
 B

G
 I

N
C

.
8

,7
0

0
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

0
8

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
B

R
IN

K
S

B
R

IN
K

'S
 I

N
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

D
3

5
7

.6
8

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

0
9

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
B

S
K

4
B

S
K

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S
6

,1
8

5
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

1
0

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
C

D
W

C
D

W
 G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
7

3
3

.6
6

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

1
1

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
C

O
A

C
C

O
O

P
E

R
 O

A
T

E
S

 A
IR

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
IN

G
8

,8
2

2
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

1
1

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
C

O
A

C
C

O
O

P
E

R
 O

A
T

E
S

 A
IR

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
IN

G
8

,8
2

2
.0

0
-

R
e

v
e

rs
a

l

0
4

8
3

1
2

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
C

O
N

S
O

L
I

C
O

N
S

O
L

ID
A

T
E

D
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
1

,2
6

8
.6

1
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

1
3

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
C

O
U

N
T

Y
C

O
U

N
T

Y
 O

F
 S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
4

3
6

,3
3

5
.0

7
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

1
4

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
C

P
H

IL
L

I
C

H
R

IS
 P

H
IL

L
IP

S
2

4
7

.7
7

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

1
5

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

 A
R

R
A

R
R

O
W

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
3

4
7

.3
6

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

1
6

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
C

S
 D

M
C

A
R

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
8

3
.8

3
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

1
7

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
C

S
 M

J
M

C
A

R
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
4

7
8

.7
1

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

1
8

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
C

S
 R

S
C

A
R

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

6
5

6
.7

8
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

1
9

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
C

S
 S

H
C

A
R

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
,4

3
8

.1
7

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

2
0

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
C

S
 S

J
C

A
R

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

7
0

8
.1

9
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

2
1

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
C

S
 S

P
C

A
R

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
,4

4
1

.0
3

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

2
2

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
D

A
C

D
A

C
2

5
0

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

2
3

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
D

A
T

A
P

R
O

D
A

T
A

P
R

O
S

E
 L

L
C

5
,8

3
2

.6
1

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

2
4

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
E

G
 F

O
R

D
E

L
K

 G
R

O
V

E
 F

O
R

D
3

3
2

.2
4

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

2
5

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
E

G
C

O
C

E
L

K
 G

R
O

V
E

 C
H

A
M

B
E

R
 O

F
 

7
0

0
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

2
6

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
F

A
S

T
E

N
A

F
A

S
T

E
N

A
L

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
9

2
.9

3
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

2
7

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
F

E
R

R
E

L
L

F
E

R
R

E
L

L
G

A
S

6
.7

2
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

2
8

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
G

R
A

N
 R

O
G

R
A

N
IT

E
 R

O
C

K
1

,6
9

6
.9

5
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

2
9

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
G

R
A

Y
B

A
R

G
R

A
Y

B
A

R
 E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
 I

N
C

2
9

5
.4

9
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

3
0

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
H

A
C

H
H

A
C

H
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

4
7

6
.5

6
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

3
1

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
IN

D
U

 E
L

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
 C

O
.

4
,6

0
0

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

3
2

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
IN

L
A

N
D

IN
L

A
N

D
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

S
2

0
0

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

3
3

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
J
 M

E
N

J
O

S
E

' L
U

IS
 M

E
N

D
O

Z
A

2
1

5
.4

5
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

3
4

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
J
A

N
 P

R
O

J
A

N
-P

R
O

 C
L

E
A

N
IN

G
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 O
F

 
3

8
0

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

3
5

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
J
O

E
'S

J
O

E
'S

 W
O

R
K

 W
E

A
R

, 
IN

C
2

3
6

.8
9

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

3
6

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
O

R
E

IL
L

Y
O

'R
E

IL
L

Y
 A

U
T

O
 P

A
R

T
S

6
3

.3
2

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

3
7

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
O

U
E

L
L

E
T

D
O

N
E

L
L

A
 M

U
R

IL
L

O
8

7
4

.1
7

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

3
8

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
P

A
C

E
P

A
C

E
 S

U
P

P
L

Y
 C

O
R

P
1

,4
5

7
.2

1
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

3
9

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
P

A
U

L
A

 M
P

A
U

L
A

 M
A

IT
A

 &
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

1
9

0
.6

7
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

4
0

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
P

U
R

C
H

P
U

R
C

H
A

S
E

 P
O

W
E

R
5

2
0

.9
9

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

4
1

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
R

A
D

IA
L

R
A

D
IA

L
 T

IR
E

 O
F

 E
L

K
 G

R
O

V
E

7
5

8
.8

5
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

4
2

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
R

E
P

U
B

L
I

R
E

P
U

B
L

IC
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 #
9

2
2

7
7

.4
8

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

4
3

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
R

O
T

H
R

O
T

H
 S

T
A

F
F

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

A
N

IE
S

, 
L

.P
.

1
,5

0
0

.2
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

4
4

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

4
5

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

4
6

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

4
7

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

4
8

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

4
9

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

5
0

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

5
1

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

5
2

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

5
3

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

5
4

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

14



L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

W
a

te
r 

S
y
s
te

m
s
 F

e
e

s
 f

o
r 

J
u

ly
 1

, 
2

0
1

8
 -

 J
u

n
e

 3
0

, 
2

0
1

8

C
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 R
e

n
e

w
a

l 
T

2
 -

 J
o

s
e

 M
e

n
d

o
z
a

C
o

p
ie

r 
- 

A
D

M
IN

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
in

g
 f

o
r 

M
O

C
/A

D
M

IN

E
n

c
ro

a
c
h

m
e

n
t 
P

e
rm

it
 f

o
r 

E
lk

 W
a

y

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

P
L

C
 U

p
g

ra
d

e
 -

 R
R

W
T

F
 G

e
n

e
ra

to
r

A
n

n
u

a
l 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 D

u
e

s
 -

 B
ru

c
e

 K
a

m
ilo

s

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 -
 W

e
lls

it
e

's
/A

D
M

IN

S
a

m
p

lin
g

 -
 T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

A
d

o
b

e
 A

c
ro

b
a

t 
P

ro
 -

 T
e

c
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

C
lo

th
in

g
 R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t

F
u

e
l

L
e

g
a

l 
- 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
9

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 H
e

lp

0
4

8
3

5
5

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

5
6

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

IE
R

R
A

S
IE

R
R

A
 O

F
F

IC
E

 S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
6

5
7

.9
9

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

5
7

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

M
U

D
S

M
U

D
1

,6
8

9
.9

8
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

5
8

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

M
U

D
S

M
U

D
1

,2
8

8
.6

8
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

5
9

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

M
U

D
S

M
U

D
4

,9
5

9
.5

7
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

6
0

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

M
U

D
S

M
U

D
6

,2
6

2
.0

3
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

6
1

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

M
U

D
S

M
U

D
7

6
.0

6
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

6
2

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

M
U

D
S

M
U

D
5

2
0

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

6
3

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

M
U

D
S

M
U

D
1

,4
7

9
.8

4
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

6
4

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

M
U

D
S

M
U

D
2

,7
5

8
.5

9
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

6
5

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

U
M

M
IT

A
IR

 W
O

R
K

S
 I

N
C

1
2

1
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

6
6

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

W
R

C
B

S
W

R
C

B
3

4
,5

2
2

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

6
7

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
S

W
R

C
B

2
S

W
R

C
B

-D
W

O
C

P
8

0
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

6
8

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
T

O
S

H
IB

A
T

O
S

H
IB

A
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
5

9
3

.0
1

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

6
9

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
W

H
IT

E
H

D
S

 W
H

IT
E

 C
A

P
 C

O
N

S
T

 S
U

P
P

L
Y

1
6

9
.5

8
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

7
0

1
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
Z

U
K

E
S

Z
U

K
E

'S
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 I
N

C
.

1
,5

0
0

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

7
1

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
C

C
P

P
M

C
C

P
P

M
4

2
6

.6
8

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

7
2

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
C

IN
T

A
S

C
IN

T
A

S
1

3
6

.9
9

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

7
3

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
C

O
E

G
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 E
L

K
 G

R
O

V
E

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

7
4

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
C

R
C

T
1

C
H

IC
A

G
O

 T
IT

L
E

 C
O

5
6

8
.8

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

7
5

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
C

R
C

T
1

C
H

IC
A

G
O

 T
IT

L
E

 C
O

1
1

5
.4

8
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

7
6

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

 C
H

C
C

H
IC

A
G

O
 T

IT
L

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

2
5

0
.0

6
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

7
7

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

 C
H

T
C

H
IC

A
G

O
 T

IT
L

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

0
.7

2
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

7
8

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

 L
E

N
L

E
N

N
A

R
 H

O
M

E
S

 C
A

, 
IN

C
1

.1
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

7
9

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

F
T

C
F

IR
S

T
 A

M
E

R
IC

A
N

 T
IT

L
E

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
1

9
.2

9
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

8
0

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

F
T

C
F

IR
S

T
 A

M
E

R
IC

A
N

 T
IT

L
E

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
1

1
3

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

8
1

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

F
T

C
F

IR
S

T
 A

M
E

R
IC

A
N

 T
IT

L
E

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
5

.7
6

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

8
2

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

ID
F

ID
E

L
IT

Y
 N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 T
IT

L
E

 C
O

4
.5

8
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

8
3

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
C

R
F

L
G

U
L

O
R

I 
G

U
T

IE
R

R
E

Z
3

.5
5

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

8
4

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
C

R
J
E

S
M

J
E

S
S

IC
A

 M
C

F
A

R
L

A
N

D
2

5
.7

3
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

8
5

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
N

O
R

T
H

 1
N

O
R

T
H

 A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 T

IT
L

E
6

9
.7

8
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

8
6

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
P

G
&

E
P

A
C

IF
IC

 G
A

S
 &

 E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
 

1
7

3
.2

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

8
7

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
P

L
A

1
0

P
L

A
C

E
R

 T
IT

L
E

1
3

0
.7

4
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

8
8

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
R

W
A

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 W

A
T

E
R

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IT
Y

1
0

0
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

8
9

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
S

A
F

E
T

Y
S

A
F

E
T

Y
 C

E
N

T
E

R
, 

IN
C

8
5

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

9
0

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
S

IE
R

R
A

S
IE

R
R

A
 O

F
F

IC
E

 S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
5

1
8

.2
6

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

9
1

1
/1

7
/2

0
1

9
U

N
IT

E
D

U
N

IT
E

D
 S

IT
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
3

3
7

.3
1

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

9
2

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
A

M
A

Z
O

N
A

M
A

Z
O

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

9
7

.1
5

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

9
3

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
A

Q
U

A
A

Q
U

A
 S

IE
R

R
A

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
S

, 
IN

C
2

1
,4

6
2

.1
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

9
4

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
A

W
W

A
A

M
E

R
IC

A
N

 W
A

T
E

R
 W

O
R

K
S

 A
S

S
O

C
.

2
6

9
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

9
5

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
B

A
Y

 A
L

A
B

A
Y

 A
L

A
R

M
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

9
5

9
.8

8
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

9
6

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
B

E
N

 R
E

S
B

E
N

E
F

IT
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
, 

IN
C

1
0

2
.5

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
3

9
7

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
B

S
K

4
B

S
K

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S
9

1
7

.5
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

9
8

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
C

D
W

C
D

W
 G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
3

6
6

.8
3

A
u

to

0
4

8
3

9
9

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
C

F
F

N
T

F
ID

E
L

IT
Y

 N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 T

IT
L

E
1

5
5

.4
5

A
u

to

0
4

8
4

0
0

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
F

R
E

D
E

R
D

A
V

ID
 F

R
E

D
E

R
IC

K
1

5
5

.4
4

A
u

to

0
4

8
4

0
1

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
F

R
O

N
T

 C
F

R
O

N
T

IE
R

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

2
4

0
.8

5
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

0
2

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
G

R
A

IN
G

E
G

R
A

IN
G

E
R

2
1

5
.1

9
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

0
3

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
IN

T
 S

T
A

IN
T

E
R

S
T

A
T

E
 O

IL
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

1
,3

9
3

.0
1

A
u

to

0
4

8
4

0
4

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
K

A
IS

E
R

2
K

A
IS

E
R

 F
O

U
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 P

L
A

N
3

4
5

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
4

0
5

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
L

C
W

L
IE

B
E

R
T

 C
A

S
S

ID
Y

 W
H

IT
M

O
R

E
3

0
,7

4
9

.2
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
4

0
6

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
R

O
T

H
R

O
T

H
 S

T
A

F
F

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

A
N

IE
S

, 
L

.P
.

8
7

7
.0

4
A

u
to

15



C
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 R
e

n
e

w
a

l 
D

3
 -

 M
a

rc
e

ll 
W

ils
o

n

C
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 R
e

n
e

w
a

l 
T

2
 -

 M
ic

h
a

e
l 
M

o
n

ti
e
l

M
iF

i's
 &

 O
n

 c
a

ll 
p

h
o

n
e

C
le

a
r,

 C
le

a
n

 &
 S

tr
u

c
tu

re
 -

 V
a

lle
y
 O

a
k
, 
N

e
p

o
n

s
e

t 
- 

 E
G

W
D

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 D

ri
v
e

w
a

y

D
a

ily
 T

a
s
k
s
/H

e
lp

 T
ic

k
e

ts

S
a

m
p

lin
g

 -
 T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

M
a

te
ri
a
ls

 &
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
 -

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

R
e

p
a

ir
s
 &

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 -
 N

e
w

 E
G

R
 V

a
lv

e
 f

o
r 

T
ru

c
k
 #

3
0

3

V
F

D
 B

o
o

s
te

r 
P

u
m

p
s
 R

R
W

T
F

F
u

e
l

M
a

te
ri
a
ls

 &
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
 -

 B
u

llh
e

a
d

s

M
a

te
ri
a
ls

 &
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
 -

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 L

in
e

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 H
e

lp

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

P
ilo

t 
F

lu
s
h

in
g

 P
ro

g
ra

m

0
4

8
4

0
7

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
S

A
W

W
A

2
S

A
W

W
A

1
0

0
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

0
8

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
S

IE
R

R
A

S
IE

R
R

A
 O

F
F

IC
E

 S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
1

7
1

.4
9

A
u

to

0
4

8
4

0
9

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
S

W
R

C
B

2
S

W
R

C
B

-D
W

O
C

P
1

9
0

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
4

1
0

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
S

W
R

C
B

2
S

W
R

C
B

-D
W

O
C

P
6

0
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

1
1

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
U

S
A

B
L

U
E

U
S

A
B

lu
e

B
o

o
k

3
6

3
.2

8
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

1
2

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
V

E
R

IZ
O

N
V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
E

L
E

S
S

4
3

1
.4

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

1
3

1
/2

4
/2

0
1

9
Z

O
O

M
Z

O
O

M
 I

M
A

G
IN

G
 S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
, 

IN
C

2
3

7
.1

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

1
4

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
A

M
A

Z
O

N
A

M
A

Z
O

N
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
1

5
.1

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

1
5

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
A

R
B

O
R

A
R

B
O

R
 T

E
C

H
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
,6

2
5

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
4

1
6

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
B

G
 S

O
L

U
S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
 B

Y
 B

G
 I

N
C

.
9

,0
6

0
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

1
7

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
B

S
K

4
B

S
K

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S
6

7
0

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
4

1
8

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
C

A
P

 R
U

B
C

A
P

IT
A

L
 R

U
B

B
E

R
 &

 G
A

S
K

E
T

5
0

4
.6

1
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

1
9

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
C

O
A

C
C

O
O

P
E

R
 O

A
T

E
S

 A
IR

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
IN

G
2

4
0

.0
0

A
u

to

0
4

8
4

2
0

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
C

O
U

N
T

Y
4

S
A

C
R

A
M

E
N

T
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

1
2

1
.3

2
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

2
1

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
E

G
 F

O
R

D
E

L
K

 G
R

O
V

E
 F

O
R

D
2

,4
1

6
.0

7
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

2
2

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
F

A
S

T
E

N
A

F
A

S
T

E
N

A
L

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
4

8
.0

3
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

2
3

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
G

R
A

IN
G

E
G

R
A

IN
G

E
R

1
6

4
.9

4
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

2
4

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
H

A
N

F
O

R
D

H
A

N
D

F
O

R
D

 S
A

N
D

 &
 G

R
A

V
E

L
, 

IN
C

2
2

9
.5

1
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

2
5

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
H

Y
D

R
O

S
C

H
Y

D
R

O
S

C
IE

N
C

E
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S
, 

IN
C

1
2

,6
2

0
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

2
6

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
IN

T
 S

T
A

IN
T

E
R

S
T

A
T

E
 O

IL
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

1
,3

3
0

.5
5

A
u

to

0
4

8
4

2
7

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
J
A

Y
S

J
A

Y
'S

 T
R

U
C

K
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
8

6
2

.7
5

A
u

to

0
4

8
4

2
8

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
P

A
C

E
P

A
C

E
 S

U
P

P
L

Y
 C

O
R

P
2

,7
0

3
.2

3
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

2
9

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
R

A
D

IA
L

R
A

D
IA

L
 T

IR
E

 O
F

 E
L

K
 G

R
O

V
E

7
2

.1
5

A
u

to

0
4

8
4

3
0

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
R

O
T

H
R

O
T

H
 S

T
A

F
F

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

A
N

IE
S

, 
L

.P
.

1
,0

8
4

.8
8

A
u

to

0
4

8
4

3
1

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

3
2

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

3
3

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

3
4

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

3
5

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

3
6

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
S

A
C

 5
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

8
.0

0
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

3
7

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
S

IE
R

R
A

S
IE

R
R

A
 O

F
F

IC
E

 S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
1

6
4

.0
7

A
u

to

0
4

8
4

3
8

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
S

O
U

T
H

W
E

S
O

U
T

H
W

E
S

T
 A

N
S

W
E

R
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
, 

2
3

8
.8

6
A

u
to

0
4

8
4

3
9

1
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
W

E
S

T
 Y

O
W

E
S

T
 Y

O
S

T
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

, 
IN

C
1

,0
3

3
.5

0
A

u
to

 T
o

ta
l:

7
6

5
,8

9
0

.1
8

16



E
lk

 G
ro

v
e
 W

a
te

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t

A
c
ti

v
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

1
/3

1
/2

0
1
9

J
U

L
Y

A
U

G
S

E
P

T
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
E

W
a
te

r 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
:

  
 M

e
te

re
d

  
  
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l

1
1
,7

9
9

  
  

1
1
,8

1
9

1
1
,8

0
0

1
1
,8

1
0

1
1
,8

0
0

1
1
,8

0
8

1
1
,8

0
3

  
  
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l

5
3
2

  
  
  
  
 

3
6
3

3
6
6

3
6
3

3
6
4

3
6
3

3
6
3

  
  
 I
rr

ig
a
ti

o
n

1
6
6

1
6
6

1
6
9

1
6
9

1
6
9

1
6
9

  
  
 F

ir
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
7
8

  
  
  
  
 

1
7
7

1
7
8

1
7
9

1
7
9

1
7
9

1
7
9

T
o

ta
l 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
1
2
,5

0
9

  
  

1
2
,5

2
5

  
1
2
,5

1
0

  
  
 

1
2
,5

2
1

  
1
2
,5

1
2

  
1
2
,5

1
9

  
1
2
,5

1
4

  
-

  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
 

E
lk

 G
ro

v
e
 W

a
te

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t

A
c
ti

v
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

F
Y

 2
0
1
7
/2

0
1
8

J
U

L
Y

A
U

G
S

E
P

T
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
J
U

N
E

W
a
te

r 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
:

  
 M

e
te

re
d

  
  
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l

1
1
,7

8
7

  
  

1
1
,8

1
1

1
1
,7

8
6

1
1
,8

1
2

1
1
,7

8
9

1
1
,7

8
4

1
1
,8

0
6

1
1
,7

8
0

1
1
,7

9
3

  
 

1
1
,7

9
4

  
1
1
,8

0
5

  
1
1
,7

9
9

  
  
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l

5
2
7

  
  
  
  
 

5
2
6

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
2
7

5
3
0

5
3
0

5
2
8

  
  
  
  

5
2
9

  
  
  
 

5
3
1

  
  
  
 

5
3
1

  
 F

ir
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
7
5

  
  
  
  
 

1
7
5

1
7
7

1
7
8

1
7
7

1
7
7

1
7
7

1
7
7

1
7
7

  
  
  
  

1
7
8

  
  
  
 

1
7
8

  
  
  
 

1
7
7

T
o

ta
l 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
1
2
,4

8
9

  
  

1
2
,5

1
2

  
1
2
,4

9
0

  
  
 

1
2
,5

1
7

  
1
2
,4

9
3

  
1
2
,4

8
8

  
1
2
,5

1
3

  
1
2
,4

8
7

  
1
2
,4

9
8

  
 

1
2
,5

0
1

  
1
2
,5

1
4

  
1
2
,5

0
7

  
  
 

17

AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent Calendar Item#     d



Operating Revenues:

Charges for Services 9,023,958$            

Operating Expenses:

Salaries & Benefits (2) 2,012,276              

Seminars, Conventions and Travel 23,072                    

Office & Operational 595,626                 

Purchased Water 1,789,477              

Outside Services 466,667                 

Equipment Rent, Taxes, and Utilities 206,980                 

Total Operating Expenses 5,094,098             

Net Operating Income 3,929,860$            

Annual Interest & Principal Payments

$3,823,909 2,230,614$            (1)

Debt Service Coverage Ratio, YTD Only: 1.76

   Required 1.15

Notes:  

1.  Reflects budget divided by number of months year to date. 

     However, first Principal/Interest Payments made in September.

     Projected Annual Budget Coverage Ratio is 1.39

2.  Reflects only YTD due to CalPERS, not entire 

     prepayment for year.

As of January 31, 2019

Elk Grove Water District
Bond Covenant Status
For Fiscal Year 2018-19

Adjusted for Prepayments

18

AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#     e



7/12=58.33%

General Ledger YTD Annual %

Reference Activity Budget Variance Realized

Revenues 4100 - 4900 9,023,958$  14,821,253$   (5,797,295)$     60.89%

Salaries & Benefits 5100 - 5280 2,196,998    4,167,812        (1,970,814)       52.71%

less Capitalized Labor (121,914)      (453,517)          331,603            26.88%

Less CalPERS Prepayment for Remainder of Year: (3) (62,808)        

 Adjusted Salaries and Benefits: 2,012,276$  3,714,295$      (1,639,211)$     54.18%

Seminars, Conventions and Travel 5300 - 5350 23,072          49,280             (26,208)             46.82%

Office & Operational 5410 - 5494 595,626        1,137,527        (541,901)          52.36%

Purchased Water est. (4) 5495 - 5495 1,789,477    3,178,328        (1,388,851)       56.30%

Outside Services 5505 - 5580 466,667        975,178           (508,511)          47.85%

Equipment Rent, Taxes, Utilities 5620 - 5760 206,980        438,900           (231,920)          47.16%

Total Operational Expenses 5,094,098$  9,493,508$      (4,336,602)$     53.66%

Net Operating Income 3,929,860$  5,327,745$      (1,460,693)$     73.76%

Non-Operating Revenues

Interest Received 9910 - 9910 106,504        100,000 6,504 106.50%

Unrealized Gains/Losses 9911 - 9911 91,173          -                    91,173              100.00%

Other Income/Expense 9920 - 9973 22,085          -                    22,085              100.00%

Total Non-Operating Revenues 219,761$     100,000$         119,761$          219.76%

Non-Operating Expenses

Election Costs 9950 - 9950 2,008            150,000           (147,992)          1.34%

All other Non-Operating Expenses

Capital Expenses (2):

Capital Improvements 1705 - 1760 217,442        390,000           (172,558)          55.75%

Capital Replacements 1705 - 1760 6,535            824,000           (817,465)          0.79%

Unforeseen Capital Projects 1705 - 1760 21,202          100,000           (78,798)             21.20%

Capital Expenses: 245,179$     1,314,000$      (1,068,821)$     18.66%

Bond Interest Accrued (1) 7300 - 7300 1,023,114 1,753,909 (730,795)          58.33%

Total Non Operating Expenses 1,270,300$  3,217,909$      (1,947,609)$     39.48%

Revenues in Excess of All Expenditures, including Capital 2,879,321$  2,209,836$      606,677$          130.30%

Bond Retirement (1): 1,207,500$  2,070,000$      (862,500)$        58.33%

Net Position after Capital and Debt Retirement Expenditures 1,671,821$  139,836$         1,469,177$      

Notes:

1.  Bond retirement payments are made two times a year in September and March

2. YTD Activity includes $121,914 in capitalized labor charged to capital projects.

3. The District prepays CalPERS for the employers' share of retirement costs for the entire year.
    By doing this, the District saves approximately 3.6% in its total CalPERS payments for the year.
    The adjusted salaries and benefits above shows what salaries and benefits would be if
    only the amount due to CalPERS YTD was paid YTD, with no prepayment.

4. There is a lag in water billings from the Sacramento County Water Agency. Included above 
    is an estimate of costs to date based on water used.

Elk Grove Water District

Year to Date Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget

As of January 31, 2019

19

AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#     f



A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

/ 
n
a
m

e
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
N

a
m

e
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
T

y
p
e

R
e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s

M
a
rk

e
t 
V

a
lu

e

G
/L

 A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
#F

u
n

d

H
E

L
D

 B
Y

 B
O

N
D

 T
R

U
S

T
E

E
:

1
1
1
0
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
B

N
Y

 8
9
2
7
4
4
 F

R
C

D
 2

0
1
4
A

 D
E

B
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
re

y
fu

s
 I
n
s
t 
T

re
a
s
u
ry

M
M

 M
u
tu

a
l 
F

u
n
d

R
e
s
tr

ic
te

d
0
.0

0

1
1
1
2
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
B

N
Y

 7
4
3
8
5
0
 F

R
C

D
 2

0
1
6
A

 D
E

B
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

D
re

y
fu

s
 I
n
s
t 
T

re
a
s
u
ry

M
M

 M
u
tu

a
l 
F

u
n
d

 R
e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 

0
.0

0

S
u

b
to

ta
l

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

1
0
0
1
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
C

a
s
h
 o

n
 H

a
n
d

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
3
0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

H
E

L
D

 B
Y

 F
&

M
 B

A
N

K
:

1
0
1
1
-0

0
0
-1

0
F

R
C

D
F

&
M

 0
8
-0

3
2
0
0
9
-0

1
 C

H
E

C
K

IN
G

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
2
2
,4

7
8
.9

4

1
0
1
1
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
F

&
M

 0
8
-0

3
2
0
1
7
-0

1
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
6
8
9
,0

6
3
.0

9

1
0
8
4
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
F

&
M

 0
8
-0

3
2
0
1
7
0
2
-3

1
 M

O
N

E
Y

 M
A

R
K

E
T

1
.4

1
%

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
2
,0

0
3
,0

0
0
.4

9

1
0
3
1
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
F

&
M

 0
8
-0

3
2
9
1
2
-0

1
 C

R
E

D
IT

 C
A

R
D

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
U

n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
2
3
6
,3

0
2
.4

3

1
0
6
1
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
F

&
M

 0
8
-0

3
2
8
9
0
-0

1
 P

A
Y

R
O

L
L
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
6
7
,8

1
8
.2

7

1
0
7
1
-0

0
0
-2

0
 

W
a
te

r
F

&
M

 0
8
-0

3
2
9
2
0
-0

1
 D

R
A

F
T

S
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
9
8
,5

3
6
.9

0

S
u

b
to

ta
l

3
,1

1
7
,2

0
0
.1

2
$
  
  
  

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
S

1
0
8
0
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
O

ff
ic

e
 o

f 
th

e
 T

re
a
s
u
re

r 
- 

S
a
c
ra

m
e
n
to

 C
a
lif

o
rn

ia
L
A

IF
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
P

o
o
l

2
.3

0
%

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
3
,5

1
6
,7

3
5
.1

4
$
  
  
  

1
0
8
1
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
C

A
L
T

ru
s
t 
M

e
d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

1
.4

5
%

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
1
,2

9
9
,2

5
7
.2

5
$
  
  
  

1
0
8
2
-0

0
0
-2

0
W

a
te

r

P
U

R
C

H
A

S
E

 D
A

T
E

C
U

S
IP

IS
S

U
E

D
 B

Y
C

A
L
L
 D

A
T

E
M

A
T

U
R

IT
Y

 D
A

T
E

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
Y

ie
ld

C
O

S
T

 B
A

S
IS

M
A

R
K

E
T

 V
A

L
U

E

9
/3

0
/2

0
1
6

N
/A

U
n
io

n
 B

a
n
k
 o

f 
C

a
lif

o
rn

ia
N

/A
N

/A
1
.8

9
%

0
.3

5
%

5
5
,8

8
4
.6

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
5
,8

8
4
.6

4
$
  
  
  
  
  

 

6
/1

4
/2

0
1
6

3
1
3
0
A

8
A

Z
6

F
e
d

e
ra

l 
H

o
m

e
 L

o
a
n

 B
a
n

k
 (

F
H

L
B

)
6
/1

4
/1

7
 -

 o
n

e
 t

im
e

M
A

T
U

R
E

D
 D

E
C

 2
0
1
8

6
.2

3
0
%

1
.1

5
0
%

6
/2

8
/2

0
1
6

3
1
3
4
G

9
V

N
4

F
e
d
e
ra

l 
H

o
m

e
 L

o
a
n
 M

o
rt

g
a
g
e
 C

o
rp

. 
(F

H
L
M

C
)

9
/2

8
/1

6
 -

 q
rt

ly
6
/2

8
/2

0
1
9

1
2
.4

7
0
%

1
.7

5
0
%

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
9
9
8
,1

0
0
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  

 

6
/3

0
/2

0
1
6

3
1
3
6
G

3
S

R
7

F
e
d
e
ra

l 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
M

o
rt

g
a
g
e
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 (

F
N

M
A

)
1
2
/3

0
/1

6
 -

 q
rt

ly
1
2
/3

0
/2

0
1
9

1
2
.3

2
0
%

1
.3

9
0
%

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
9
8
9
,4

2
0
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  

 

9
/3

0
/2

0
1
6

3
1
3
6
G

4
D

B
6

F
e
d
e
ra

l 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
M

o
rt

g
a
g
e
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 (

F
N

M
A

)
3
/3

0
/1

7
 -

 q
rt

ly
3
/3

0
/2

0
2
0

1
2
.2

5
0
%

1
.2

7
0
%

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
9
8
5
,4

6
0
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  

 

6
/9

/2
0
1
6

3
1
3
3
E

G
C

P
8

F
e
d
e
ra

l 
F

a
rm

 C
re

d
it
 B

a
n
k
s
 (

F
F

C
B

)
9
/1

/1
6
 -

 c
o
n
t.

1
2
/1

/2
0
2
0

1
2
.2

1
0
%

1
.6

5
0
%

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
9
8
3
,7

9
0
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  

 

6
/1

6
/2

0
1
6

3
1
3
6
G

3
P

Y
5

F
e
d
e
ra

l 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
M

o
rt

g
a
g
e
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 (

F
N

M
A

)
1
2
/1

6
/1

6
 -

 q
rt

ly
1
2
/1

6
/2

0
2
0

1
2
.2

1
0
%

1
.5

8
0
%

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
9
8
2
,6

0
0
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  

 

1
1
/1

/2
0
1
7

3
1
3
3
E

H
M

3
4

F
e
d
e
ra

l 
F

a
rm

 C
re

d
it
 B

a
n
k
 B

o
n
d
s
(F

F
C

B
)

1
1
/0

1
/2

2
 -

 c
o
n
t.

1
1
/1

/2
0
2
2

1
2
.1

7
%

2
.2

6
0
%

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
9
8
4
,7

0
0
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  

 

9
/3

0
/2

0
1
6

3
1
3
6
G

4
C

Y
7

F
e
d
e
ra

l 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
M

o
rt

g
a
g
e
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 (

F
N

M
A

)
3
/3

0
/1

7
 -

 q
rt

ly
9
/3

0
/2

0
2
1

6
.0

0
%

1
.5

5
0
%

5
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
8
5
,2

9
0
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  

 

1
1
/2

/2
0
1
6

3
1
3
0
A

9
R

Z
6

F
e
d
e
ra

l 
H

o
m

e
 L

o
a
n
 B

a
n
k
 (

F
H

L
B

)
4
/2

8
/1

7
 -

 q
rt

ly
1
0
/2

8
/2

0
2
1

1
2
.2

5
%

1
.0

1
0
%

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
9
8
9
,4

8
0
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  

 

7
,5

5
5
,8

8
4
.6

4
$
  
  
  
  

 
7
,4

5
4
,7

2
4
.6

4
$
  
  
  

Y
T

M
 =

 Y
ie

ld
 t
o
 M

a
tu

ri
ty

T
o

ta
l

1
5
,3

8
8
,2

1
7
.1

5
$
  
  

q
tr

ly
 =

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

c
o
n
t.
 =

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

 
T

o
ta

l 
U

n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
1
5
,3

8
8
,2

1
7
.1

5
$
  
  

F
lo

ri
n

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
 C

o
n

s
e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 D
is

tr
ic

t
C

A
S

H
 -

 D
e
ta

il
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 o
f 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

ts
1
/3

1
/2

0
1
9

20

STEFANI
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#      g



F
is

c
a

l 
R

e
ta

in
e

r 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
n

t
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 
C

o
n

tr
a
c
t

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

M
o

n
th

 P
a
id

 t
o

 

d
a
te

2
0
1
8
-2

0
1
9
 

F
Y

 B
u

d
g

e
t

P
e
rc

e
n

t 
o

f 

y
e
a
r 

(5
9
%

)

N
o
s
k
y
 L

e
g
a
l 
G

ro
u
p
 

T
a
s
k
 o

rd
e
rs

T
B

D
-

$
  
  
  
  

2
5
,4

9
0

$
  
  

1
7
5
,0

0
0

$
  

 
1
4
.5

7
%

S
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 B

G
, 
In

c
.

T
a
s
k
 o

rd
e
rs

4
7
7
,3

2
5
.0

0
2
5
,4

8
4

$
  

1
0
2
,9

3
7

$
  

1
5
2
,5

0
0

$
  

 
6
7
.5

0
%

In
fi
n
it
e
 I
T

 S
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 I
n
c
. 

T
a
s
k
 o

rd
e
rs

2
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
-

$
  
  
  
  

2
7
,6

7
8

$
  
  

7
3
,9

2
0

$
  
  

 
3
7
.4

4
%

M
a

jo
r 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

ts

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
n

t
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 
C

o
n

tr
a
c
t

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

M
o

n
th

 P
a
id

 t
o

 

d
a
te

2
0
1
8
-2

0
1
9
 

F
Y

 B
u

d
g

e
t

P
e
rc

e
n

t 
o

f 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

H
D

R
 E

n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
, 
In

c
.

W
a
te

r 
R

a
te

 S
tu

d
y

8
8
,6

5
0

-
$
  
  
  
  

1
0
,0

6
7

$
  
  

1
1
,2

8
0

$
  
  

 
8
9
.2

5
%

L
u
n
d
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 C

o
.

B
a
c
k
y
a
rd

 W
a
te

r 
M

a
in

s
4
3
6
,9

9
9
.8

0
-

$
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
0
.0

0
%

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
n

t 
E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 3
1
, 
2
0
1
9

21

STEFANI
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#      h



T
o

ta
l

J
a
n

T
o

ta
l 
Y

T
D

C
a
p

it
a
l 
P

ro
je

c
t

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
je

c
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

 P
ro

je
c
t 

E
x
p

 

to
 D

a
te

 

P
e
rc

e
n

t 

S
p

e
n

t

C
a
p

it
a
li
z
e
d

 

L
a
b

o
r 

F
u

n
d

 

T
y

p
e

P
ro

je
c

t 
T

y
p

e
2
0
1
8
-1

9
 B

u
d

g
e
t

 P
ro

je
c
t 

E
x
p

(1
)

Y
T

D
 %

 

S
p

e
n

t

B
a
c
k
y
a
rd

 W
a
te

r 
M

a
in

s
/S

e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

7
3
4
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  

3
,7

6
3

$
  
  
  
  

 
0
.5

1
%

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
R

&
R

S
u

p
p

ly
/D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
7
3
4
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,0

4
6

$
  
  
  
  
  

3
,7

6
3

$
  
  
  

0
.5

1
%

K
e
n
t 
S

tr
e
e
t 
W

a
te

r 
M

a
in

2
8
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
3
9
,7

9
2

  
  
  

 
8
5
.6

4
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
R

&
R

S
u

p
p

ly
/D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
2
4

  
  
  
  
  

 
1
0
0
.0

0
%

(2
)

C
a
m

d
e
n
 W

a
te

r 
M

a
in

 R
e
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
s

2
8
,4

6
2

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
8
,4

6
2

  
  
  
  

 
1
0
0
.0

0
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
R

&
R

S
u

p
p

ly
/D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,5

4
8

  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

0
%

(2
)

R
R

W
T

F
 P

a
rk

in
g
 L

o
t 
R

e
p
a
v
in

g
9
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
0
.0

0
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
R

&
R

B
u

ild
in

g
 a

n
d

 S
it
e

9
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

0
%

S
e
rv

ic
e
 L

in
e
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

7
5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

5
9
6
,4

7
6

  
  
  

 
7
9
.5

3
%

1
1
9
,5

7
0

  
  
  

 
C

IP
S

u
p

p
ly

/D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
6
,6

5
9

  
  
  
  
  

1
6
0
,2

1
1

  
  

1
0
0
.0

0
%

(2
)

R
a
d
io

 A
n
te

n
n
a
s

8
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
6
,2

4
8

  
  
  
  

 
2
0
.3

1
%

2
,3

4
4

  
  
  
  
  

 
C

IP
T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
,7

1
9

  
  
  
  

1
0
0
.0

0
%

(2
)

R
R

W
T

F
 G

e
n
e
ra

to
r 

P
L
C

/S
C

A
D

A
 U

p
g
ra

d
e

3
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
1
,4

6
2

  
  
  
  

 
6
1
.3

2
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
C

IP
T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

3
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
1
,4

6
2

  
  
  
  
  

2
1
,4

6
2

  
  
  

6
1
.3

2
%

W
e
ll 

3
 P

u
m

p
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

1
8
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
0
.0

0
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
C

IP
T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

1
8
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

0
%

H
a
m

p
to

n
 W

T
P

 G
e
n
e
ra

to
r 

R
e
m

o
v
a
l

2
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
0
.0

0
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
C

IP
T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

2
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

0
%

T
ru

c
k
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

1
1
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
0
.0

0
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
C

IP
B

u
ild

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

it
e

1
1
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

0
%

I.
T

. 
S

e
rv

e
rs

3
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
8
,9

5
5

  
  
  
  

 
8
2
.7

3
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
C

IP
B

u
ild

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

it
e

3
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
8
,9

5
5

  
  
  

8
2
.7

3
%

F
ib

e
r 

O
p
ti
c
 C

a
b
le

1
3
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
3
6
,2

6
0

  
  
  

 
1
0
0
.9

3
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
C

IP
B

u
ild

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

it
e

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
5

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
0
0
.0

0
%

(2
)

U
n
fo

re
s
e
e
n
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

1
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
1
,2

0
2

  
  
  
  

 
2
1
.2

0
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

1
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
1
,2

0
2

  
  
  
  
  

2
1
,2

0
2

  
  
  

2
1
.2

0
%

(3
)

S
u
b
-T

o
ta

l
2
,5

8
7
,4

6
2

$
  
  

 
1
,0

9
2
,6

2
0

$
  

4
2
.2

3
%

1
2
1
,9

1
4

$
  
  

 
1
,3

1
4
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  

 
7
1
,3

6
9

$
  
  
  
  

2
4
5
,1

7
9

$
  

1
8
.6

6
%

(1
) 

 I
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 $

1
2
1
,9

1
4
 i
n
 c

a
p
it
a
liz

e
d
 l
a
b
o
r 

th
ro

u
g
h
 0

1
/3

1
/1

9

(2
) 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 b
u
d
g
e
te

d
 f
o
r 

in
 p

ri
o
r 

y
e
a
rs

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 w
o
rk

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

v
e
r 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
y
e
a
r.

(3
) 

C
o
o
p
e
r 

O
a
ts

 -
 H

V
A

C
 f
o
r 

IT
 B

u
ild

in
g
 -

 $
8
,5

8
2

  
  
  
H

y
d
ro

S
c
ie

n
c
e
 -

 V
a
ri
a
b
le

 F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 D

ri
v
e
s
 -

 $
1
2
,6

2
0

E
lk

 G
ro

v
e

 W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t
M

a
jo

r 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

je
c

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
v

s
 A

c
tu

a
ls

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 3
1

, 
2

0
1

9

22

STEFANI
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#      i



AGENDA ITEM No. 3 

February 20, 2019 
 

 
TO:  Chairperson and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM: Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary  
 
SUBJECT: COMMITTEE MEETINGS  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
This item is presented for information only. No action by the Florin Resource Conservation 
District Board of Directors is proposed at this time. 
 
 

SUMMARY 

 
The Florin Resource Conservation District (FRCD) Board of Directors (Board) has 
requested a monthly summary of committee meetings. No committee meetings were held 
in the month of January. 
 
 

DISCUSSION 

 
Background 
 
At the Regular Board Meeting held on May 27, 2015, the Board determined committee 
meeting minutes be brought to the FRCD Regular Board Meeting and placed under 
agenda item Committee Meetings. The agenda item Committee Meetings, was placed 
after agenda item Consent Calendar for approval. This item may be moved within the 
agenda, if necessary, by direction from the Chairperson. The committee meeting minutes 
shall be accepted by the Board.    
 
Present Situation    
 
No committee meetings were held in the month of January. 
   
 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

 
There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report.  
 
 
 
 
 

23



 February 20, 2019 
 

COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

Page 2 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 3 

STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 

 
This item is in keeping with the District’s Business Practice goals of the 2012-2017 
Strategic Plan. 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

 
There is no financial impact associated with this item at this time.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
STEFANI PHILLIPS,  
BOARD SECRETARY   
 
 

24



AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

February 20, 2019 
 

 
TO:      Chairperson and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM:       Mark J. Madison, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT: ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT OPERATIONS REPORT – JANUARY 
         2019  
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
This item is presented for information only. No action by the Florin Resource Conservation 
District Board of Directors is proposed at this time.  
 
 

SUMMARY 
 
The Elk Grove Water District (EGWD) Operations Report is a standing item on the regular 
board meeting agenda. 
 

All regulatory requirements were met for the month of January. Other notable events are 
described below. 
 
 

DISCUSSION 
 
Background 
 

Every month, staff presents an update of the activities related to the operations of the 
EGWD. Included for the Board’s review is the EGWD’s January 2019 Operations Report. 
 

Present Situation 
 

The EGWD January 2019 Operations Report highlights are as follows: 
 

 Operations Activities Summary – Notable items in the activities summary are 
that EGWD left 682 door hangers for past due balances this month, which resulted 
in 67 shutoffs. We received one (1) water pressure complaint and two (2) water 
quality complaints. Upon further inspection, none of the complaints were validated. 
 

 Production – The Combined Total Service Area 1 production graph on page 13 
shows that production during the month of January decreased 4.39 percent 
compared to January 2018, and is 13.78 percent less than what was produced in 
2013. (Year 2013 is the baseline year the State Water Quality Control Board 
adopted for water usage.) The Total Demand/Production for both service areas on 
page 14 shows that customer use during the month of January, compared to 
January 2013, was down by 13.02 percent.  

25



  February 20, 2019 
 
ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT OPERATIONS REPORT – JANUARY 2019   
Page 2 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 4 
   

 Static and Pumping Level Graphs – The third quarter soundings are shown and 
indicate that all of the static water levels in deeper zones have increased as 
compared to 2017. The shallow zones have also shown improvement. 
 

 Treatment (Compliance Reporting) – All samples taken during the month are in 
compliance with all regulatory permit requirements. No exceedances of any 
maximum contaminant levels were found and all water supplied to EGWD’s 
customers met or exceeded safe drinking water standards. 

  

 Corrective Maintenance Program – The tables included in this section of the 
report also include certain activities completed to date. Below is a list of out-of-
ordinary maintenance work completed in January: 

 
o Staff replaced a malfunctioning pressure transducer on Booster VFD #1. 
o Staff assisted with the completion of the standby generator PLC/HMI 

replacement at the Railroad Water Treatment Plant. 
o Staff began the process of moving the analyzer locations at the Hampton 

WTP. 
 

 Backflow Prevention Program 2019 – EGWD issued 48 notices for the month. 
From the initial testing notices, 41 devices passed. We inactivated two (2) of the 
remaining devices. We also issued five (5) secondary notices, of which we have 
received four (4) passing tests. There is one (1) outstanding device currently 
overdue for the month of January, which will require further investigation. 

 

 Safety Meetings/Training – There were four (4) safety training sessions 
conducted for the month.  Only two (2) safety sessions are required by OSHA 
standards.  

 

 Service Line Replacement Map – EGWD replaced 28 residential service lines in 
the month of January.  

 

 Service and Main Leaks Map – There was one (1) service line leak reported for 
the month. 

 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report. 
 

26



  February 20, 2019 
 
ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT OPERATIONS REPORT – JANUARY 2019   
Page 3 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 4 
   

STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 
 
The EGWD’s Strategic Plan addresses responsible business practices and the 
importance of providing the community with safe drinking water. The EGWD Operations 
Report is a key document for managing EGWD’s distribution and treatment system.  The 
EGWD Operations Report assists EGWD toward its responsibility of delivering safe 
drinking water.  
 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
 
There is no financial impact associated with this report. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
  
 
MARK J. MADISON 
GENERAL MANAGER 
 
MJM/ah 
 
Attachment  
 
 

27



EGWD 
Elk 
Grove  
Water  
District 

OPERATIONS REPORT 

January 2019 

28



Elk Grove Water District 
Operations Report 

Table of Contents 

1. Operations Activities Summary ...................................................................................... 3 

2. Production 

a. Active Well Sites & Intertie Connections Map ....................................................... 4 
b. Monthly Production Graphs 

i. Well 1D School Street ........................................................................ 5 
ii. Well 4D Webb Street  ........................................................................ 6 
iii. Well 11D Dino  ................................................................................... 7 
iv. Well 14D Railroad  ............................................................................. 8 
v. Well 3 Mar-Val  .................................................................................. 9 
vi. Well 8 Williamson  ............................................................................ 10 
vii. Well 9 Polhemus  ............................................................................. 11 
viii. Well 13 Hampton  ............................................................................ 12 

c. Combined Total Production ................................................................................. 13 
d. Total Demand/Production  ................................................................................... 14 
e. EGWD Water Usage ………………………………………………………………….15 
f. RWA Savings Summary …………………………………………..………………….16 

3. Static and Pumping Level Graphs 

a. Well 1D School Street ......................................................................................... 17 
b. Well 4D Webb Street  .......................................................................................... 18 
c. Well 11D Dino  ..................................................................................................... 19 
d. Well 14D Railroad  ............................................................................................... 20 
e. Well 3 Mar-Val  .................................................................................................... 21 
f. Well 8 Williamson  ............................................................................................... 22 
g. Well 9 Polhemus  ................................................................................................. 23 
h. Well 13 Hampton  ................................................................................................ 24 

4. Regulatory Compliance  

a. Monthly Water Sample Report …………………………………………………..25-30 
b. Monthly Compliance Report ……………………………………………………..31-32 
c. Monthly Summary of Distribution System Coliform Monitoring ………………33-34 
d. Monthly Summary of the Hampton Groundwater Treatment Plant ………….35-36 
e. Monthly Fluoridation Monitoring Report……………………………..…………..37-38 

5. Preventative Maintenance Program 

a. Ground Water Wells ............................................................................................ 39 
b. Railroad Water Treatment and Storage Facility  ................................................. 40 
c. Hampton Village Water Treatment Plant  ............................................................ 41 
d. Standby Generators  ........................................................................................... 42 

6. Backflow Prevention Program 2017 ............................................................................. 43 

7. Safety Meetings/Training ............................................................................................... 44 

8. Service Line Replacement Map ..................................................................................... 45 

9. Service and Main Leaks Map ......................................................................................... 46 

10. Sample Station Areas Map ............................................................................................ 47 

11. Sample Station Area(s) Pressure Monitoring ......................................................... 48-57 

29



Operations Activities Summary 
 
 
 

 

Service Requests: 

Department 

January-19 
 

Service Request 

 
 

Hours 

YTD (Since Jan. 1, 
 

  Service Request 

2019) 
 

Hours 

Distribution 

Door Hangers 

 
      682 

 
31.50 

 
   682 

 
 31.50 

Shut offs       67 13.25    67 13.25 

Turn ons       71 4    71 4 

Investigations       35 13.25    35  13.25 

USA Locates               193 48.25    193  48.25 

Customer Complaints     

-Pressure       1 0.50   1      0.50 

-Water Quality       2 1   2      1 

-Other       0 0   0 0 

 

Work Orders: January-19 YTD (Since Jan. 1, 2019) 
 

 Department     Work Orders       Hours       Work Orders       Hours 
 

Treatment: 

Preventative Maint. 20     39.50 20 39.50 

Corrective Maint. 6       62 6 62 

Water Samples 23 50 23 50 
 

Distribution: 

Meters Installed 

 

 

5 

 

 

2.5 

 

 

5 

 

 

2.5 

Meter Change Out                21    15.25 21 15.25 

Preventative Maint.     

-Hydrant Maintenance (135) 150     50.5 150 50.5 

-Valve Exercising (120) 150 8 150        8 

-Other 0 0 0 0 

Corrective Maint.  

-Leaks 1 14.5 1 14.5 

-Other 16       29 16 29 

Valve Locates 0 0 0 0 
 

Utility: 

Service Line Replacement 

 

 

28 

 

 

544.50 

 

 

28 

 

 

544.50 

Corrective Maint. 0  0 0 0 

 

3
30



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! !
! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
! !

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! !

&%

&%

&%

&%

&%

&%

&%

&%

@A

@A

@A

@A

@A

@A

9
8

3

4D

1D

13

11D
14D

Active Well Sites &
Intertie Connections Elk Grove Water District

0 2,500 5,0001,250 Feet

Legend
@A Intertie Connections
&% Active Well Site

!

! !

!

!!

Service Area 1 .
4

31



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

7
,5

5
4

,3
1

5
G

a
ll

o
n

s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

:

1
,7

7
8

 

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
6

8

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

R
P

M
:

1
7

8
9

R
P

M
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

1
1

5

A
m

p
s 

A
:

1
7

8

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
2

A
m

p
s 

B
:

1
7

9

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
2

A
m

p
s 

C
:

1
7

3

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
2

M
o

to
r 

T
e

m
p

:
9

6
F

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

7
0

.8
0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

9
,0

4
0

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.5

2
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.5
1

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
1

.0
1

m
g

/L

V
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g

:

B
a

se
 L

in
e

:
0

.0
5

in
/s

e
c

C
u

rr
e

n
t:

0
.0

2
in

/s
e

c

W
e

ll
 1

D
 S

ch
o

o
l 

--
 J

a
n

. 
2

0
1

9

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

5
32



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

2
0

,2
5

6
,0

0
3

G
a

ll
o

n
s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

:

1
,7

0
4

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
7

6

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

R
P

M
:

1
6

0
4

R
P

M
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
7

5

A
m

p
s 

A
:

1
8

7

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
5

A
m

p
s 

B
:

1
8

6

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
5

A
m

p
s 

C
:

1
8

6

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
5

M
o

to
r 

T
e

m
p

:
1

1
8

F

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

1
9

8
.1

0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

2
7

,4
2

0

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.6

m
g

/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.5
9

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
1

.0
1

m
g

/L

V
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g

:

B
a

se
 L

in
e

:
0

.0
5

in
/s

e
c

C
u

rr
e

n
t:

0
.0

2
in

/s
e

c

W
e

ll
 4

D
 W

e
b

b
 -

- 
Ja

n
. 

2
0

1
9

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

6
33



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

2
1

,9
8

2
,9

8
2

G
a

ll
o

n
s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

:

1
,6

9
7

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
7

0

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

R
P

M
:

1
6

1
4

R
P

M
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
7

5

A
m

p
s 

A
:

1
8

7

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
5

A
m

p
s 

B
:

1
6

9

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
5

A
m

p
s 

C
:

1
8

9

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
5

M
o

to
r 

T
e

m
p

:
9

7
.3

F

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

2
1

5
.8

0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

2
8

,3
8

0

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.5

9
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.7
m

g
/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
0

.8
9

m
g

/L

V
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g

:

B
a

se
 L

in
e

:
0

.0
5

in
/s

e
c

C
u

rr
e

n
t:

0
.0

1
in

/s
e

c

W
e

ll
 1

1
D

 D
in

o
 -

- 
Ja

n
. 

2
0

1
9

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

7
34



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

4
,5

0
1

,9
8

8
G

a
ll

o
n

s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

:

1
,6

4
1

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
7

6

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

R
P

M
:

1
7

8
6

R
P

M
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
8

5

A
m

p
s 

A
:

1
6

2

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
1

A
m

p
s 

B
:

1
6

3

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
1

A
m

p
s 

C
:

1
5

6

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
1

M
o

to
r 

T
e

m
p

.:
9

3
.3

F

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

4
5

.7
0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

5
4

,7
2

0

(K
W

H
 t

o
ta

l 
is

 f
o

r 
th

e
 e

n
ti

re
 f

a
ci

li
ty

)

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.6

2
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.7
5

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
0

.8
7

m
g

/L

V
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g

:

B
a

se
 L

in
e

:
0

.0
2

in
/s

e
c

C
u

rr
e

n
t:

0
.0

2
in

/s
e

c

W
e

ll
 1

4
D

 R
a

il
ro

a
d

 -
- 

Ja
n

. 
2

0
1

9

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

8
35



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

8
1

,0
0

0
G

a
ll

o
n

s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

: 7
9

4

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
7

7

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

R
P

M
:

8
8

R
P

M
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

9
8

3

A
m

p
s 

A
:

8
8

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
8

8

A
m

p
s 

B
:

8
7

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
8

8

A
m

p
s 

C
:

8
8

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
8

8

M
o

to
r 

T
e

m
p

.:
1

6
3

F

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

1
.7

0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

2
8

8

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.9

5
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
1

.3
m

g
/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
0

.6
5

m
g

/L

V
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g

:

B
a

se
 L

in
e

:
0

.0
2

in
/s

e
c

C
u

rr
e

n
t:

0
.0

4
in

/s
e

c

W
e

ll
 3

 M
a

r-
V

a
l 

--
 J

a
n

. 
2

0
1

9

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

9
36



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

2
,6

4
3

,4
5

9
G

a
ll

o
n

s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

: 5
3

7

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
5

8

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

A
m

p
s 

A
:

6
0

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

A
m

p
s 

B
:

5
9

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

A
m

p
s 

C
:

6
0

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

8
1

.9
0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

3
,4

0
0

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.2

1
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.1
2

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
1

.0
9

m
g

/L

W
e

ll
 8

 W
il

li
a

m
so

n
 -

- 
Ja

n
. 

2
0

1
9

(S
u

b
m

e
rs

ib
le

)

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

10
37



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

1
,2

3
9

,0
0

0
G

a
ll

o
n

s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

: 4
6

7

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
8

3

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

A
m

p
s 

A
:

5
7

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

A
m

p
s 

B
:

5
7

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

A
m

p
s 

C
:

6
3

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

4
4

.2
0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

1
,8

6
4

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.4

5
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.4
5

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
1

.0
0

m
g

/L

W
e

ll
 9

 P
o

lh
e

m
u

s 
--

 J
a

n
. 

2
0

1
9

(S
u

b
m

e
rs

ib
le

)

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

11
38



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

5
8

8
,2

5
4

G
a

ll
o

n
s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

: 9
4

2

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
7

9

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

R
P

M
:

1
7

8
8

R
P

M
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
8

5

A
m

p
s 

A
:

1
0

3

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

4
1

A
m

p
s 

B
:

1
0

4

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

4
1

A
m

p
s 

C
:

1
0

5

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

4
1

M
o

to
r 

T
e

m
p

.:
9

6
F

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

1
0

.4
0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

2
,4

0
0

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.5

7
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.6
2

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
0

.9
5

m
g

/L

V
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g

:

B
a

se
 L

in
e

:
0

.0
2

in
/s

e
c

C
u

rr
e

n
t:

0
.0

1
in

/s
e

c

W
e

ll
 1

3
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 -

- 
Ja

n
. 

2
0

1
9

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

12
39



C
u

rr
e

n
t 

M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
:

5
8

,8
4

7
,0

0
1

G
a

ll
o

n
s

H
ig

h
e

st
 D

a
y

 D
e

m
a

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 M
o

n
th

:

2
,1

1
4

,4
5

1

H
ig

h
e

st
 D

a
y

 D
e

m
a

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 C
a

le
n

d
e

r 
Y

e
a

r:

6
,3

6
0

,9
8

2

"
W

a
te

r 
Y

e
a

r"
 R

a
in

fa
ll

: 
(O

ct
-1

8
 t

o
 S

e
p

-1
9

)

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

M
o

n
th

:
4

.2
2

in

Y
e

a
r 

T
o

 D
a

te
:

9
.1

0
in

"
W

a
te

r 
Y

e
a

r"
 R

a
in

fa
ll

: 
(O

ct
-1

7
 t

o
 S

e
p

-1
8

)

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

8
5

.2
0

in

Y
e

a
r 

T
o

 D
a

te
:

7
.6

2
in

La
st

 Y
e

a
r 

T
o

ta
l:

1
5

.9
6

in

T
e

m
p

e
ra

tu
re

:

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 H

ig
h

6
5

F

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 L

o
w

2
9

F

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 A

v
e

ra
g

e
5

0
.2

F

JA
N

-1
8

 H
ig

h
 

6
5

F

JA
N

-1
8

 L
o

w
3

2
F

JA
N

-1
8

 A
v

e
ra

g
e

4
9

.9
5

F

D
a

te
 o

f 
O

cc
u

ra
n

ce

Ja
n

-2
0

1
9

1
4

-J
a

n
-1

9

D
a

te
 o

f 
O

cc
u

ra
n

ce

1
8

-A
u

g
-1

8

S
e

rv
ic

e
 A

re
a

 1

E
lk

 G
ro

v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

C
o

m
b

in
e

d
 T

o
ta

l 
P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

5
0

1
0

0

1
5

0

2
0

0

2
5

0

Ja
n

F
e

b
M

a
r

A
p

r
M

a
y

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u

g
S

e
p

O
ct

N
o

v
D

e
c

2
0

1
3

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
9

13
40



C
u

rr
en

t 
M

o
n

th
 D

e
m

an
d

/P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
:

8
8

,7
4

2
,3

1
7

G
al

lo
n

s

R
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 F

ro
m

 J
an

. 2
0

1
3

: 
 1

3
.0

2
%

G
P

C
D

:  
 

 6
1

.6
G

al
lo

n
s 

p
er

 D
ay

R
-G

P
C

D
:

   
5

2
.4

G
al

lo
n

s 
p

er
 D

ay

Se
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a 
1

 

A
ct

iv
e

 C
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s:
 

7
,9

2
9

   
   

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
M

o
n

th
 D

e
m

an
d

/P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
:

5
5

,8
4

7
,0

0
1

G
al

lo
n

s

R
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 F

ro
m

 J
an

. 2
0

1
3

: 
 1

3
.7

8
%

G
P

C
D

:  
 

  6
3

.1
G

al
lo

n
s 

p
er

 D
ay

R
-G

P
C

D
:

 5
1

.8
G

al
lo

n
s 

p
er

 D
ay

Se
rv

ic
e

 A
re

a 
2

A
ct

iv
e

 C
o

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s:
 

4
,4

1
4

   
   

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
M

o
n

th
 D

e
m

an
d

/P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
:

2
9

,8
9

5
,3

1
6

 
G

al
lo

n
s

R
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 F

ro
m

 J
an

. 2
0

1
3

:  
1

1
.4

7
%

G
P

C
D

:  
 

  5
9

.0
G

al
lo

n
s 

p
er

 D
ay

R
-G

P
C

D
:

 5
3

.1
  

G
al

lo
n

s 
p

er
 D

ay

Ja
n

-2
0

1
9

El
k 

G
ro

ve
W

at
e

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t

To
ta

l D
em

an
d

/P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

0

5
0

1
0

0

1
5

0

2
0

0

2
5

0

3
0

0

3
5

0

4
0

0

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r
M

ay
Ju

n
Ju

l
A

u
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v
D

ec

Million Gallons

2
0

1
9

 S
A

 2

2
0

1
9

 S
A

 1

2
0

1
8

 S
A

 2

2
0

1
8

 S
A

 1

2
0

1
3

 S
A

 2

2
0

1
3

 S
A

 1

14 41



2
0

1
3

Ja
n

u
ar

y
Fe

b
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er
N

o
ve

m
b

er
D

ec
em

b
er

G
W

 (
SA

1
)

6
8

,2
5

4
,9

1
6

8
1

,3
6

8
,1

9
1

1
0

0
,5

4
2

,5
2

2
1

2
1

,6
1

3
,5

2
3

1
7

2
,6

2
3

,8
3

9
1

9
6

,5
5

7
,1

3
7

2
2

1
,3

3
5

,3
8

8
2

0
5

,8
3

0
,8

5
0

1
6

6
,9

9
7

,5
3

6
1

4
5

,3
5

2
,5

3
0

1
0

7
,1

8
6

,4
5

9
8

0
,4

9
4

,1
6

7

P
u

rc
h

as
ed

 (
SA

2
)

3
3

,7
6

9
,9

5
6

3
0

,9
2

9
,0

5
2

3
6

,9
4

2
,9

7
2

5
1

,9
1

1
,2

0
0

8
7

,4
7

0
,3

7
2

1
0

0
,7

0
9

,2
2

4
1

1
2

,1
2

8
,1

9
2

1
1

0
,8

8
5

,7
6

4
1

0
5

,4
1

7
,1

3
6

8
1

,6
6

5
,8

9
2

7
1

,5
0

5
,0

6
0

6
2

,1
6

5
,5

3
2

To
ta

l
1

0
2

,0
2

4
,8

7
2

1
1

2
,2

9
7

,2
4

3
1

3
7

,4
8

5
,4

9
4

1
7

3
,5

2
4

,7
2

3
2

6
0

,0
9

4
,2

1
1

2
9

7
,2

6
6

,3
6

1
3

3
3

,4
6

3
,5

8
0

3
1

6
,7

1
6

,6
1

4
2

7
2

,4
1

4
,6

7
2

2
2

7
,0

1
8

,4
2

2
1

7
8

,6
9

1
,5

1
9

1
4

2
,6

5
9

,6
9

9

2
0

1
5

Ja
n

u
ar

y
Fe

b
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er
N

o
ve

m
b

er
D

ec
em

b
er

G
W

 (
SA

1
)

6
2

,6
8

4
,5

7
4

5
7

,3
6

5
,4

1
3

8
6

,4
8

9
,4

3
7

8
8

,9
8

4
,8

5
0

1
0

6
,1

5
8

,3
8

9
1

1
4

,5
5

5
,3

5
9

1
2

7
,0

3
8

,5
8

6
1

2
5

,0
5

2
,3

1
5

1
1

7
,8

8
3

,2
0

8
9

9
,3

8
5

,7
3

3
6

4
,0

7
9

,7
1

5
5

7
,5

0
8

,7
8

7

P
u

rc
h

as
ed

 (
SA

2
)

2
8

,6
4

8
,4

0
0

3
0

,0
2

9
,2

0
8

3
6

,8
7

6
,4

0
0

5
1

,6
2

6
,2

1
2

5
2

,7
3

4
,0

0
0

6
2

,3
6

8
,2

4
0

7
1

,2
7

3
,9

2
8

7
5

,0
5

5
,0

6
8

7
0

,1
2

3
,5

0
4

6
3

,5
2

6
,8

9
2

4
6

,8
7

3
,4

2
0

3
4

,3
9

9
,7

7
2

To
ta

l
9

1
,3

3
2

,9
7

4
8

7
,3

9
4

,6
2

1
1

2
3

,3
6

5
,8

3
7

1
4

0
,6

1
1

,0
6

2
1

5
8

,8
9

2
,3

8
9

1
7

6
,9

2
3

,5
9

9
1

9
8

,3
1

2
,5

1
4

2
0

0
,1

0
7

,3
8

3
1

8
8

,0
0

6
,7

1
2

1
6

2
,9

1
2

,6
2

5
1

1
0

,9
5

3
,1

3
5

9
1

,9
0

8
,5

5
9

2
0

1
6

Ja
n

u
ar

y
Fe

b
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er
N

o
ve

m
b

er
D

ec
em

b
er

G
W

 (
SA

1
)

5
4

,5
7

9
,6

7
9

5
3

,4
5

5
,6

9
3

5
6

,7
7

6
,0

2
5

8
0

,3
1

7
,6

5
5

1
1

0
,9

3
7

,3
3

8
1

4
8

,5
1

8
,6

6
0

1
6

4
,7

5
8

,4
6

3
1

5
9

,5
0

1
,5

7
1

1
4

0
,2

0
0

,5
8

4
9

9
,0

1
9

,6
2

9
6

3
,0

8
7

,7
6

2
5

9
,6

3
5

,5
5

9

P
u

rc
h

as
ed

 (
SA

2
)

2
7

,5
1

6
,6

7
6

2
6

,5
0

7
,6

2
4

2
7

,5
3

1
,6

3
6

3
4

,0
5

4
,1

9
6

5
1

,0
7

1
,1

9
6

7
5

,5
4

1
,2

6
8

9
6

,2
4

6
,6

5
6

9
3

,9
9

2
,1

8
4

8
6

,9
0

4
,1

3
6

7
5

,6
8

2
,6

4
0

3
7

,0
8

8
,0

8
4

2
8

,8
9

4
,4

9
2

To
ta

l
8

2
,0

9
6

,3
5

5
7

9
,9

6
3

,3
1

7
8

4
,3

0
7

,6
6

1
1

1
4

,3
7

1
,8

5
1

1
6

2
,0

0
8

,5
3

4
2

2
4

,0
5

9
,9

2
8

2
6

1
,0

0
5

,1
1

9
2

5
3

,4
9

3
,7

5
5

2
2

7
,1

0
4

,7
2

0
1

7
4

,7
0

2
,2

6
9

1
0

0
,1

7
5

,8
4

6
8

8
,5

3
0

,0
5

1

2
0

1
7

Ja
n

u
ar

y
Fe

b
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er
N

o
ve

m
b

er
D

ec
em

b
er

G
W

 (
SA

1
)

5
9

,9
7

3
,8

8
1

5
0

,3
2

0
,8

3
2

6
1

,0
8

0
,5

5
9

6
8

,6
5

8
,7

5
2

1
3

7
,5

9
9

,3
0

5
1

5
5

,4
7

2
,9

5
1

1
8

0
,0

8
6

,7
3

9
1

7
3

,6
8

4
,1

1
9

1
5

2
,4

7
5

,4
0

0
1

3
1

,3
9

0
,8

0
8

7
6

,6
1

9
,6

4
2

6
7

,8
7

4
,7

4
1

P
u

rc
h

as
ed

 (
SA

2
)

2
6

,9
5

1
,1

8
8

2
8

,1
8

4
,6

4
0

2
8

,7
5

6
,8

6
0

3
4

,1
6

7
,8

9
2

4
8

,6
5

3
,6

6
0

8
7

,0
0

3
,6

2
0

9
6

,5
3

5
,3

8
4

1
0

4
,7

6
6

,3
7

6
9

8
,9

7
9

,8
4

8
8

4
,1

5
4

,4
8

8
6

1
,7

8
8

,5
4

0
3

4
,2

2
8

,4
8

0

To
ta

l
8

6
,9

2
5

,0
6

9
7

8
,5

0
5

,4
7

2
8

9
,8

3
7

,4
1

9
1

0
2

,8
2

6
,6

4
4

1
8

6
,2

5
2

,9
6

5
2

4
2

,4
7

6
,5

7
1

2
7

6
,6

2
2

,1
2

3
2

7
8

,4
5

0
,4

9
5

2
5

1
,4

5
5

,2
4

8
2

1
5

,5
4

5
,2

9
6

1
3

8
,4

0
8

,1
8

2
1

0
2

,1
0

3
,2

2
1

2
0

1
8

Ja
n

u
ar

y
Fe

b
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er
N

o
ve

m
b

er
D

ec
em

b
er

G
W

 (
SA

1
)

6
1

,5
4

7
,7

5
1

6
1

,5
5

8
,8

5
0

6
2

,8
4

8
,3

0
3

7
6

,2
6

7
,1

4
4

1
2

5
,7

0
3

,2
2

1
1

5
8

,3
1

3
,3

9
4

1
8

1
,4

6
7

,4
4

6
1

7
3

,7
3

7
,6

7
6

1
5

0
,6

0
9

,2
7

8
1

3
3

,1
6

3
,9

9
1

9
7

,2
9

4
,6

5
4

6
3

,6
3

1
,0

4
2

P
u

rc
h

as
ed

 (
SA

2
)

3
1

,9
2

5
,3

8
8

3
1

,5
1

2
,4

9
2

3
3

,7
7

9
,6

8
0

3
2

,9
8

9
,7

9
2

5
2

,6
9

2
,8

6
0

8
5

,6
7

9
,6

6
0

1
0

1
,0

3
1

,6
1

2
1

0
4

,4
5

7
,4

5
2

9
7

,4
0

0
,0

7
2

7
7

,9
9

6
,2

0
4

6
6

,1
1

6
,4

6
8

4
2

,8
4

9
,1

8
0

To
ta

l
9

3
,4

7
3

,1
3

9
9

3
,0

7
1

,3
4

2
9

6
,6

2
7

,9
8

3
1

0
9

,2
5

6
,9

3
6

1
7

8
,3

9
6

,0
8

1
2

4
3

,9
9

3
,0

5
4

2
8

2
,4

9
9

,0
5

8
2

7
8

,1
9

5
,1

2
8

2
4

8
,0

0
9

,3
5

0
2

1
1

,1
6

0
,1

9
5

1
6

3
,4

1
1

,1
2

2
1

0
6

,4
8

0
,2

2
2

2
0

1
9

Ja
n

u
ar

y
Fe

b
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Ju
ly

A
u

gu
st

Se
p

te
m

b
er

O
ct

o
b

er
N

o
ve

m
b

er
D

ec
em

b
er

G
W

 (
SA

1
)

5
8

,8
4

7
,0

0
1

P
u

rc
h

as
ed

 (
SA

2
)

2
9

,8
9

5
,3

1
6

To
ta

l
8

8
,7

4
2

,3
1

7
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

%
 R

ed
u

ct
io

n
 f

ro
m

 2
0

1
3

8
.3

8
%

1
7

.1
2

%
2

9
.7

2
%

3
7

.0
4

%
3

1
.4

1
%

1
7

.9
2

%
1

5
.2

8
%

1
2

.1
6

%
8

.9
6

%
6

.9
9

%
8

.5
5

%
2

5
.3

6
%

*N
o

te
s

2
0

1
3

 J
an

u
ar

y 
an

d
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 n

u
m

b
er

s 
d

o
 n

o
t 

m
at

ch
 a

ct
u

al
ly

 r
ec

o
rd

ed
 p

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f 

an
 o

p
en

 in
te

rt
ie

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

w
at

er
 t

o
 S

A
2

.  
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 b

el
o

w
 is

 f
u

rt
h

er
 d

et
ai

ls
.

SA
1

 =
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a 

1
, S

A
2

 =
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a 

2
.  

SA
1

 is
 a

ll 
gr

o
u

n
d

w
at

er
 (

G
W

) 
p

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

.  
SA

2
 is

 a
ll 

p
u

rc
h

as
ed

 w
at

er
 f

ro
m

 S
C

W
A

.

A
ct

u
al

 R
ec

o
rd

ed
 P

ro
d

. (
Ja

n
. 2

0
1

3
) 

- 
Se

rv
ic

e 
A

re
a 

1
 

7
9

,3
6

1
,3

4
2

ga
llo

n
s

(I
n

cl
u

d
es

 w
at

er
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 t
o

 S
A

2
 d

u
e 

to
 o

p
en

 in
te

rt
ie

.  
In

te
rt

ie
 c

lo
se

d
 e

n
d

 o
f 

Fe
b

. 2
0

1
3

)

A
ct

u
al

 R
ec

o
rd

ed
 P

ro
d

. (
Fe

b
. 2

0
1

3
) 

- 
Se

rv
ic

e 
A

re
a 

1
 

9
4

,6
0

8
,4

0
6

ga
llo

n
s

(I
n

cl
u

d
es

 w
at

er
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 t
o

 S
A

2
 d

u
e 

to
 o

p
en

 in
te

rt
ie

.  
In

te
rt

ie
 c

lo
se

d
 e

n
d

 o
f 

Fe
b

. 2
0

1
3

)

To
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
es

ti
m

at
e 

o
f 

Fe
b

. 2
0

1
3

 p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 t
o

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
re

a 
1

, u
se

 m
u

lt
ip

lie
r 

fr
o

m
 M

ar
ch

 d
at

a 
w

h
ic

h
 is

 s
ea

so
n

al
ly

 s
im

ila
r.

)

1
.3

9
(c

al
cu

la
te

d
 f

ro
m

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
1

3
 P

ro
d

. D
at

a/
M

ar
ch

 2
0

1
4

 P
ro

d
. D

at
a)

C
al

c'
d

 F
eb

. 2
0

1
3

 P
ro

d
. =

 F
eb

. 2
0

1
4

 P
ro

d
. D

at
a 

x 
1

.3
9

 =
7

9
,7

3
7

,9
2

4

To
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
es

ti
m

at
e 

o
f 

Ja
n

. 2
0

1
3

 p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
, u

se
 p

ro
ra

te
d

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

fr
o

m
 F

eb
. 2

0
1

3
 d

at
a.

  (
Th

is
 m

et
h

o
d

 d
u

e 
to

 J
an

. 2
0

1
4

 b
ei

n
g 

u
n

se
as

o
n

ab
ly

 h
o

t.
)

C
al

c'
d

 J
an

. 2
0

1
3

 P
ro

d
. =

 (
Fe

b
. 2

0
1

3
 P

ro
d

. D
at

a 
C

al
c'

d
 /

 F
eb

. 2
0

1
3

 P
ro

d
. D

at
a 

A
ct

u
al

) 
x 

Ja
n

. 2
0

1
3

 P
ro

d
. D

at
a 

A
ct

u
al

 =
6

8
,2

5
4

,9
1

6

2
0

1
9

# 
A

cc
ts

C
C

F
G

al
lo

n
s

Ja
n

4
,4

1
2

3
9

,9
6

7
2

9
,8

9
5

,3
1

6

Fe
b

0

M
ar

0

A
p

r
0

M
ay

0

Ju
n

0

Ju
l

0

A
u

g
0

Se
p

0

O
ct

0

N
o

v
0

D
ec

0

Se
rv

ic
e 

A
re

a 
1

 M
u

lt
ip

lie
r 

=

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
- 

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

 (
ga

llo
n

s)
 -

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

El
k 

G
ro

ve
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
W

at
er

 U
sa

ge

Se
rv

ic
e 

A
re

a 
2

*
*

15
42



Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Total

SW 3,793 3,949 4,331 5,597 9,595 12,062 13,527 12,466 10,528 10,033 6,697 4,390 96,968

GW 2,663 2,521 2,297 2,513 3,451 3,885 4,614 5,031 4,420 2,948 2,743 2,326 39,412

Total 6,456 6,469 6,627 8,111 13,046 15,947 18,141 17,497 14,947 12,981 9,440 6,716 136,380

2018 Monthly Water Production by Source (Million Gallons)

59% 61% 65%
69%

74%

76%
75%

71%
70% 77%

71%

65%

41% 39% 35%

31%

26%

24%

25%
29%

30%

23%

29%

35%

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

20,000

Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.

M
ill

io
n

 G
al

lo
n

s

2018 Monthly Water Production by Source

Surface Water Groundwater

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

Jan. Feb. March April May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.

M
ill

io
n

 G
al

lo
n

s

Regional Monthly Water Production (Million Gallons)

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

    December 2018 Data Summary 

16 43



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

8
1

F
t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
1

7
2

F
t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

9
1

F
t

G
P

M
:

1
,8

3
6

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
2

0
.1

7
1

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 1

D
 S

ch
o

o
l 

S
t 

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-8
1

-1
7

2

-2
0

0

-1
8

0

-1
6

0

-1
4

0

-1
2

0

-1
0

0

-8
0

-6
0

-4
0

-2
00

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

1
9

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-9
3

-8
8

-9
2

-8
6

-8
4

-8
6

-8
9

-8
1

-1
8

0
-1

7
5

-1
8

1
-1

7
1

-1
6

0
.5

-1
6

9
.2

-1
7

0
.2

-1
7

2

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

17
44



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

1
1

0
F

t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
2

0
9

F
t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

9
9

F
t

G
P

M
:

1
,7

0
7

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
1

7
.2

4
2

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 4

D
 W

e
b

b
 S

t

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-1
1

0

-2
0

9

-2
5

0

-2
0

0

-1
5

0

-1
0

0

-5
00

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

1
9

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-1
1

4
-1

1
0

-1
4

1
-1

3
6

-1
0

5
-1

0
2

-1
2

7
.5

-1
2

7

-1
1

0

-2
0

3
-2

0
5

-2
3

5
-2

3
3

-2
0

7
-2

0
2

-2
2

0
.2

5
-2

2
4

-2
0

9

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 
2

0
1

9

18
45



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

1
0

3
F

t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
1

9
9

F
t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

9
6

F
t

G
P

M
:

1
,7

1
9

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
1

7
.9

0
6

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 1

1
D

 D
in

o

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-1
0

3

-1
9

9

-2
5

0

-2
0

0

-1
5

0

-1
0

0

-5
00

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

1
9

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-1
1

0
-1

0
6

.2
5

-1
3

4
-1

3
3

-1
0

0
-1

0
0

-1
2

3
-1

2
0

-1
0

3

-1
7

9
-1

7
5

.7
5

-1
9

6
-1

9
8

-1
7

0
-1

6
9

-2
0

0
-2

0
2

-1
9

9

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 
2

0
1

9

19
46



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

1
0

3
F

t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
2

0
2

F
t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

9
9

F
t

G
P

M
:

1
,6

4
9

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
1

6
.6

5
7

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 1

4
D

 R
a

il
ro

a
d

 

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-1
0

3

-2
0

2

-2
5

0

-2
0

0

-1
5

0

-1
0

0

-5
00

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

1
9

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-1
0

5
-1

1
8

-1
3

0
-1

2
5

-9
9

-9
9

-1
1

9
-1

1
6

-1
0

3

-2
2

6
-2

0
8

-2
1

5
-2

1
5

-1
9

6
-1

9
6

.5
-2

1
0

-2
0

8
-2

0
2

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

20
47



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

6
9

F
t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
7

7
F

t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

8
F

t

G
P

M
:

8
1

0

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
1

0
1

.2
5

0

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
7

.0
4

4
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 3

 M
a

r-
V

a
l

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-6
9

-7
7

-1
0

0

-8
0

-6
0

-4
0

-2
00

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

1
9

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-7
4

-7
3

.5

-7
7

-7
7

-7
0

-6
9

-7
3

-6
9

-8
3

-8
2

.2
5

-8
6

-8
5

-7
9

-7
7

-8
2

-7
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

21
48



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

6
8

.2
5

F
t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
7

7
F

t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

8
.7

5
F

t

G
P

M
:

5
4

0

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
6

1
.7

1
4

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 8

 W
il

li
a

m
so

n
 

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-6
8

.2
5

-7
7

-1
0

0

-8
0

-6
0

-4
0

-2
00

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

1
9

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-7
3

-7
0

.7
5

-7
0

-7
3

-6
8

.2
5

-8
7

.2
5

-8
5

.7
5

-7
8

-8
2

-7
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 
2

0
1

9

22
49



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

7
4

F
t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
8

7
F

t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

1
3

F
t

G
P

M
:

4
7

0

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
3

6
.1

5
4

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 9

 P
o

lh
e

m
u

s 

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-7
4

-8
7

-1
0

0

-7
5

-5
0

-2
50

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

1
9

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-7
9

-7
7

.2
5

-7
8

-7
9

-7
5

-7
3

-7
5

-7
6

.5
-7

4

-9
2

-9
0

.2
5

-9
1

-9
2

-8
7

-8
5

-8
7

-8
9

.2
5

-8
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 
2

0
1

9

23
50



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

7
3

.5
F

t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
8

8
.5

F
t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

1
5

F
t

G
P

M
:

9
6

5

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
6

4
.3

4
9

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 1

3
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-7
3

.5

-8
8

.5

-1
0

0

-7
5

-5
0

-2
50

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

1
9

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
1

9

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-7
9

-8
2

-7
5

-7
2

.5

-8
0

-8
0

-7
3

.5

-9
5

-9
7

-9
1

-8
9

-9
5

-9
7

.7
5

-8
8

.5

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
7

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
7

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

.

2
0

1
8

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
8

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 
2

0
1

9

24
51



S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/2

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

2
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

T
T

H
M

 /
 H

A
A

5
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 F
e
,M

n
,A

s
 T

o
ta

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 F
e
,M

n
,A

s
 D

is
s
o
lv

e
d

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
A

n
n
u
a
l 
N

it
ra

te
A

n
n
u
a
l

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/2

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

2
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

O
u
t 
o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
h
a
b

M
o

n
th

ly
 S

a
m

p
le

 R
e

p
o

rt
  

- 
J

a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0

1
9

W
a

te
r 

S
y
s

te
m

: 
E

lk
 G

ro
v
e

 W
a

te
r 

S
y
s

te
m

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

1
 -

 8
6
9
3
 W

. 
C

a
m

d
e
n

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
S

c
h

o
o

l 
W

e
ll
 0

1
D

 -
 R

a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

2
 -

 9
4
2
5
 E

m
e
ra

ld
 V

is
ta

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
- 

M
a
r-

V
a
l 
W

e
ll
 3

 R
a
w

 W
a
te

r

25
52



S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/2

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

2
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/2

2
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
/2

2
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 F
e
,M

n
,A

s
 T

o
ta

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
/2

2
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 F
e
,M

n
,A

s
 D

is
s
o
lv

e
d

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
A

n
n
u
a
l 
N

it
ra

te
A

n
n
u
a
l

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/2

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

2
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/2

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

2
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

T
T

H
M

 /
 H

A
A

5
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

3
 -

 8
8
0
9
 V

a
ll
e
y
 O

a
k

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
W

e
b

b
 W

e
ll
 0

4
D

 -
 R

a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

4
 -

 1
0
1
2
2
 G

la
c
ie

r 
P

o
in

t

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

5
 -

 9
2
3
0
 A

m
s
d

e
n

 C
t.

26
53



S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/2

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

2
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/2

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

2
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 F
e
,M

n
,A

s
 T

o
ta

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 F
e
,M

n
,A

s
 D

is
s
o
lv

e
d

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 1
,2

,3
, 
T

C
P

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
A

n
n
u
a
l 
N

it
ra

te
A

n
n
u
a
l

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/2

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

2
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

T
T

H
M

 /
 H

A
A

5
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
- 

W
il
li
a
m

s
o

n
 W

e
ll
 8

 R
a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

6
 -

 9
2
2
7
 R

a
n

c
h

o
 D

r.

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

7
 -

 A
l 
G

a
te

s
 P

a
rk

 M
a
in

li
n

e
 D

r.
 

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

9
 -

 9
4
3
6
 H

o
ll
o

w
 S

p
ri

n
g

s
 W

y
.

27
54



S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/2

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

2
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

F
lu

o
ri
d
e

M
o
n
th

ly

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/2

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

2
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 F
e
,M

n
,A

s
 T

o
ta

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 F
e
,M

n
,A

s
 D

is
s
o
lv

e
d

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
A

n
n
u
a
l 
N

it
ra

te
A

n
n
u
a
l

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
 P

o
lh

e
m

u
s
 W

e
ll
 9

 R
a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

9
 -

 8
4
1
7
 B

la
c
k
m

a
n

 W
y
.

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 1

0
 -

 9
3
7
3
 O

re
o

 R
a
n

c
h

 C
ir

.

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
D

in
o

 W
e
ll
 1

1
D

 -
 R

a
w

 W
a
te

r

28
55



S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/2

/2
0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
F

e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

1
/2

/2
0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
B

a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k
ly

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
F

e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
B

a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

W
e
e
k
ly

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
F

e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

1
/2

2
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
F

e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
F

e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/2

/2
0
1
9

T
re

a
te

d
 E

ff
lu

e
n
t

F
e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

T
re

a
te

d
 E

ff
lu

e
n
t

F
e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

1
/1

5
/2

0
1
9

T
re

a
te

d
 E

ff
lu

e
n
t

F
e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

1
/2

2
/2

0
1
9

T
re

a
te

d
 E

ff
lu

e
n
t

F
e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

1
/2

9
/2

0
1
9

T
re

a
te

d
 E

ff
lu

e
n
t

F
e
, 
M

n
, 
A

s
, 
T

o
ta

l
W

e
e
k
ly

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 B
a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 F
e
,M

n
,A

s
 T

o
ta

l
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
 W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 F
e
,M

n
,A

s
 D

is
s
o
lv

e
d

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
3
 m

o
 -

 1
,2

,3
, 
T

C
P

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

S
o
u
rc

e
  
W

a
te

r
A

n
n
u
a
l 
N

it
ra

te
A

n
n
u
a
l

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
H

a
m

p
to

n
 W

e
ll
 1

3
 -

 R
a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
H

a
m

p
to

n
 W

T
P

 E
ff

lu
e
n

t

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
H

a
m

p
to

n
 W

T
P

 B
a
c
k
w

a
s
h

 T
a
n

k

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
R

a
il
ro

a
d

 W
e
ll
 1

4
D

 -
 R

a
w

 W
a
te

r

29
56



S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

T
re

a
te

d
 P

la
n
t 
E

ff
lu

e
n
t

W
T

P
 E

ff
 -

 F
e
,M

n
,A

s
,A

l 
T

o
ta

l
M

o
n
th

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

T
re

a
te

d
 P

la
n
t 
E

ff
lu

e
n
t

W
T

P
 E

ff
 -

 F
e
,M

n
,A

s
,A

l 
D

is
s
o
lv

e
d

M
o
n
th

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 

1
/8

/2
0
1
9

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
B

a
c
te

ri
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

M
ile

s
to

n
e
/F

ie
ld

s
to

n
e
 N

e
w

 W
a
te

r 
M

a
in

s

C
o
lo

rs
M

o
n
th

ly
 T

o
ta

l
Y

e
a
rl
y
 T

o
ta

l

B
la

c
k
 =

 S
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
8
4

8
4

G
re

e
n
 =

 U
n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
7

7

R
e
d
 =

 I
n
c
o
m

p
le

te
 S

a
m

p
le

0

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
/C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 S
a
m

p
le

s
 

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 R

a
il
ro

a
d

 W
T

P
 E

ff
lu

e
n

t

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
R

a
il
ro

a
d

 W
T

P
 B

a
c
k
w

a
s
h

 T
a
n

k

30
57



31
58



32
59



33
60



34
61



35
62



36
63



37
64



38
65



Y
e

a
r:

 2
0

1
9

E
lk

 G
r
o

v
e
 W

a
te

r
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v

e
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
 P

ro
g

ra
m

G
ro

u
n

d
w

a
te

r 
W

e
ll

s

R
e

fe
r.

JA
N

F
E

B
M

A
R

A
P

R
M

A
Y

JU
N

JU
L

A
U

G
S

E
P

O
C

T
N

O
V

D
E

C
R

e
fe

r.
1

S
T

 6
-M

O
.

2
N

D
 6

-M
O

.
R

e
fe

r.
2

0
1

9

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

D
a

te
1

/8
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
7

1

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

D
a

te
1

/1
5

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
7

3

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

D
a

te
1

/8
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
7

4

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

D
a

te
1

/1
5

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
7

5

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

D
a

te
1

/1
4

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
7

6

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

D
a

te
1

/7
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
7

7

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

D
a

te
1

/1
0

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
7

8

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

D
a

te
1

/9
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
7

9

M
o

n
th

ly
S

e
m

i-
a

n
n

u
a

l
A

n
n

u
a

l

Well 11D 

Dino

Sect: 8.1

Sect: 8.2

Sect: 8.3

Well 14D 

Railroad

Sect: 7.1

Sect: 7.2

Sect: 7.3

Well 4D 

Webb

Well 1D 

School

Sect: 13.1

Sect: 13.2

Sect: 13.3

Sect: 9.1

Sect: 9.2

Sect: 9.3

Well 3 

Mar-Val

Well 8 

Williamson

Sect: 11.1

Sect: 11.4

Sect: 12.1

Sect: 12.2

Sect: 12.4 Sect: TBD

Well 13 

Hampton

Sect: TBD

Sect: TBD

Well 9 

Polhemus

Sect: TBD

Sect: TBD

39 66



Y
e

a
r:

 2
0

1
9

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e
 W

a
te

r
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 P
ro

g
ra

m

R
a

ir
o

a
d

 W
a

te
r 

T
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
to

ra
g

e
 F

a
ci

li
ty

It
e

m
R

e
fe

r.
JA

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
JU

N
JU

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

R
e

fe
r.

1
st

2
n

d
3

rd
4

th
R

e
fe

r.
1

S
T

  
  

  
 6

-

M
O

.

2
N

D
  

  
  

 6
-

M
O

.
R

e
fe

r.
2

0
1

9

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

D
a

te
1

/1
7

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

0

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

D
a

te
1

/1
6

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

1

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

D
a

te
1

/1
8

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

2

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

D
a

te
1

/2
2

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

3

In
it

ia
ls

D
a

te

W
.O

. 
#

In
it

ia
ls

D
a

te

W
.O

. 
#

In
it

ia
ls

D
a

te

W
.O

. 
#

M
o

n
th

ly
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

S
e

m
i-

a
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

Section: 

2.4

Section: 

1.1

Section: 

1.2

Section: 

4.4

Section: 

3.2
Section: 2.3

Section: 

5.1

Section: 

5.2

Section: 

5.3

MCC

Section: 

1.2

Backwash 

Ssytem

Section: 2.1

Section: 2.2

Filter 

System

Clor-Tec 

System

Section: 

4.2

Section: 

4.3

Booster 

Pumps

Section: 

3.1

Section: 

TBD

LAB
 Clear 

Wells

40 67



Y
e

a
r:

 2
0

1
9

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e
 W

a
te

r
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 P
ro

g
ra

m

H
a

m
p

to
n

 V
il

la
g

e
 W

a
te

r 
T

re
a

tm
e

n
t 

P
la

n
t

It
e

m
R

e
fe

r.
JA

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
JU

N
JU

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

R
e

fe
r.

1
st

2
n

d
3

rd
4

th
R

e
fe

r.
1

S
T

  
  

  
 6

-

M
O

.

2
N

D
  

  
  

 6
-

M
O

.
R

e
fe

r.
2

0
1

9

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

D
a

te
1

/9
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

4

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

D
a

te
1

/9
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

5

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

D
a

te
1

/9
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

6

In
it

ia
ls

D
a

te

W
.O

. 
#

In
it

ia
ls

D
a

te

W
.O

. 
#

Section: 

TBD

MCCLAB

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Filter 

System

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Backwash 

Ssytem

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

M
o

n
th

ly
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

S
e

m
i-

a
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

Chemical 

Systems

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

41 68



Y
e

a
r:

 2
0

1
9

E
lk

 G
r
o

v
e
 W

a
te

r
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 P
ro

g
ra

m

S
ta

n
d

b
y

 G
e

n
e

ra
to

rs

It
e

m
R

e
fe

r.
JA

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
JU

N
JU

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

R
e

fe
r.

2
0

1
9

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

D
a

te
1

/1
6

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

7

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

D
a

te
1

/1
5

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

8

In
it

ia
ls

W
Q

D
a

te
1

/8
/1

9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
8

9

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

D
a

te
1

/2
0

/1
9

W
.O

. 
#

1
6

8
9

0

=
 L

o
a

d
 T

e
st

Section: 

TBD

Webb

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Dino

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Admin.

M
o

n
th

ly
A

n
n

u
a

l

Rairoad

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

42
69



El
k 

G
ro

ve
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t

B
ac

kf
lo

w
 P

re
ve

n
ti

o
n

 P
ro

gr
am

 2
0

1
9

JA
N

FE
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
JU

N
JU

L
A

U
G

SE
P

O
C

T
N

O
V

D
EC

4
8

4
1

4
1 0 0 2 0 0 5 1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

1
To

ta
l O

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g 
D

e
lin

q
u

e
n

ts

B
ac

kf
lo

w
 D

ev
ic

e 
R

ep
o

rt
s

N
o

ti
ce

s 
Is

su
ed

C
U

R
R

EN
T

P
as

se
d

 In
it

ia
l T

es
t

Fa
ile

d
 In

it
ia

l T
es

t

A
ss

em
b

lie
s 

Te
st

e
d

2
n

d
 N

o
ti

ce
s 

Is
su

ed

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n
s 

o
r 

A
d

d
re

ss
 C

h
an

ge

In
ac

ti
va

te
d

 D
ev

ic
es

M
o

n
th

ly
 O

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g 
D

el
in

q
u

en
ts

Sc
h

ed
u

le
 C

o
d

e 
C

h
an

ge
d

D
ev

ic
es

 T
u

rn
ed

 O
ff

Fa
ile

d
 D

ev
ic

es
 R

et
es

te
d

--
--

P
as

se
d

43
70



Date Topic Attendees Hosted By

1/2/2019
Accident 

Investigation 

Alan Aragon, Jose Carrillo, Aaron 

Hewitt, Sean Hinton,  Justin Mello, Jose 

Mendoza, Sal Mendoza, Mike Montiel, 

Chris Phillips, Richard Salas, Steve 

Shaw, John Vance, Brandon Wagner, 

Marcell Wilson, Vue Xiong

Sarah Jones

1/14/2019 Near Misses

Alan Aragon, Jose Carrillo, David 

Frederick, Aaron Hewitt, Sean Hinton,  

Justin Mello, Sal Mendoza, Chris 

Phillips, Wilfredo Quintero, William 

Sadler, Richard Salas, Steve Shaw, 

John Vance, Brandon Wagner, Marcell 

Wilson

Sarah Jones

1/24/2019
Fire Extinguisher 

Use

Alan Aragon, Aurelia Camilo, Jose 

Carrillo, Thomas Dainat, Travis 

Franklin, David Frederick, Aaron Hewitt, 

Sean Hinton, Bruce Kamilos, Amber 

Kavert, Patrick Lee, Mark Madison, 

Justin Mello, Jose Mendoza, Sal 

Mendoza, Mike Montiel, Donella Murillo, 

Chris Phillips, Wilfredo Quintero, Cindy 

Robertson, William Sadler, Richard 

Salas, Steve Shaw, John Vance, Tonia 

Williams, Marcell Wilson

Sarah Jones

1/28/2019

Reducing The Threat 

of Workplace 

Violence 

Alan Aragon, Jose Carrillo, David 

Frederick, Aaron Hewitt, Sean Hinton, 

Justin Mello, Jose Mendoza, Sal 

Mendoza, Mike Montiel, Wilfredo 

Quintero, William Sadler, Richard 

Salas, Steve Shaw, John Vance, 

Brandon Wagner, Marcell Wilson

Sarah Jones

Elk Grove Water District

Safety Meetings/Training 

January 2019

44
71



So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

, G
eo

Ba
se

, IG
N,

 Ka
da

ste
r N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
Es

ri C
hin

a (
Ho

ng
 Ko

ng
), s

wi
ss

top
o, 

© 
Op

en
St

ree
tM

ap
 co

ntr
ibu

tor
s, 

an
d t

he
 G

IS 
Us

er 
Co

mm
un

ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Cr
ea

ted
 by

: T
rav

is 
Fra

nk
lin

Da
te:

 Fe
bru

ary
 7,

 20
19

Se
rvi

ce
 Li

ne
 R

ep
lac

em
en

t
0

1,0
00

2,0
00

50
0

Fe
et

Le
ge

nd Se
rvi

ce
s t

o R
ep

lac
e

Se
rvi

ce
s t

o R
ep

lac
e w

ith
 W

ate
r M

ain
s

Re
pla

ce
d S

erv
ice

s i
n J

an
ua

ry 
20

19
Re

pla
ce

d S
erv

ice
s 

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
 N

AD
 83

 S
tat

e P
lan

e, 
Ca

lifo
rna

 II,
 FI

PS
 04

20
So

urc
e: 

Ci
ty 

of 
Elk

 G
rov

e, 
EG

WD
 an

d S
ac

ram
en

to 
Co

un
ty 

GI
S d

ata
ba

se
s

.
Se

rvi
ce

s R
ep

lac
ed

 in
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
19

: 2
8

Se
rvi

ce
s t

o R
ep

lac
e: 

13
7

To
tal

 S
erv

ice
s R

ep
lac

ed
: 4

43

45

72



!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

^

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

^

^

^

^
! ^

!

^

!

!

^

!

^

!

!

!

^

!

!

!

!

^

!

!

!

!

!

^

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

^ ^

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

^

!

!

!

^

^
!

!

!

!^

!

!

!

!
!

!

^
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

^

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

^

^

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

^

!
!

!

^
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

^

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

^

! .

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

, G
eo

Ba
se

, IG
N,

 Ka
da

ste
r N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n,
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 Ko
ng

), s
wi

ss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Le
ge

nd
Ma

in 
Le

ak
s

_̂
Ja

nu
ary

 20
19

^
20

18
^

20
17

^
20

16
^

20
15

Se
rvi

ce
 Le

ak
s

! .
Ja

nu
ary

 20
19

!
20

18
!

20
17

!
20

16
!

20
15

Se
rvi

ce
 Ar

ea
 1

Se
rvi

ce
 Ar

ea
 2

Elk
 G

rov
e W

ate
r D

ist
ric

t
0

3,0
00

6,0
00

Fe
et

Elk
 G

rov
e W

ate
r D

ist
ric

t
 Se

rvi
ce

 / M
ain

 Le
ak

s
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Da

te:
 Fe

bru
ary

 7,
 20

19

Ja
nu

ary
 20

19
Ma

in 
Lin

e L
ea

ks
: 0

YT
D:

  0
Se

rvi
ce

 Li
ne

 Le
ak

s: 
1

YT
D:

  1
To

tal
 Le

ak
s: 

 1
YT

D:
  1

/
Ma

in 
an

d S
erv

ice
 Li

ne
 Le

ak
s M

ap

46

73



" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi
SS

A5

SS
A8

SS
A6

SS
A7

SS
A4

SS
A3

SS
A2

SS
A9

SS
A1

SS
A1

0

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

, G
eo

Ba
se

, IG
N,

 Ka
da

ste
r N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n,
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 Ko
ng

), s
wi

ss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 1

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 2

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 3

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 4

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 5

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 6

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 7

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 8

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 9

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 10

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
s

Fe
bru

ary
 7,

 20
19"

Sa
mp

le 
St

ati
on

s: 
 10

0
3,4

00
6,8

00
1,7

00
Fe

et

Elk
 G

rov
e W

ate
r D

ist
ric

t
Pr

oje
cte

d C
oo

rdi
na

te 
Sy

ste
m:

 N
AD

 83
 S

tat
e P

lan
e C

A I
I F

IPS
 04

02
So

urc
e: 

EG
WD

 G
IS 

da
tab

as
e

Mo
dif

ied
 by

: T
rav

is 
Fra

nk
lin

47

74



SS
A1

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

,
Ge

oB
as

e, 
IG

N,
 K

ad
as

ter
 N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
sw

iss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
:  T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Fe

bru
ary

 7,
 20

19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

1

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 1

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 9

No
te:

  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"
0

60
0

1,2
00

30
0

Fe
et

1 i
nc

h =
 83

3 f
ee

t

Ja
nu

ary
 20

19

Ran
ge 

of 
PSI

% o
f Ti

me
>7

0
0.1

1%
60 

- 69
.99

59.
72%

50 
- 59

.99
40.

12%
40 

- 49
.99

0.0
4%

< 4
0

0.0
0%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea

W.
Cam

de
n (

SSA
1)

So
urc

e:E
GW

D 
GI

S d
ata

ba
se

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 P
lan

e C
A I

I F
IP

S 0
40

2

48
75



SS
A2

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

,
Ge

oB
as

e, 
IG

N,
 K

ad
as

ter
 N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
sw

iss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Elk
 G

rov
e W

ate
r D

ist
ric

t
Sy

ste
m 

Pr
es

su
re 

Mo
nit

ori
ng

Cr
ea

ted
 by

: T
rav

is 
Fra

nk
lin

Fe
bru

ary
 7,

 20
19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

2

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 2

No
te:

 Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n t

ak
es

 a 
rea

din
g

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"

0
60

0
1,2

00
30

0
Fe

et

1 i
nc

h =
 83

3 f
ee

t

Ja
nu

ary
 20

19

50 
- 59

.99
4.1

9%
60 

- 69
.99

94.
21%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
0%

40 
- 49

.99
0.0

0%

Em
era

ld V
ista

 (SS
A 2

)
Ran

ge 
of 

PSI
1.6

0%
>7

0

So
urc

e: 
EG

WD
 G

IS 
da

tab
as

e

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 P
lan

e C
A I

I F
IP

S 0
40

2

49
76



SS
A3

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

,
Ge

oB
as

e, 
IG

N,
 K

ad
as

ter
 N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
sw

iss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Fe

bru
ary

 7,
 20

19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

3

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 2

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 3

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 4

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 6

No
te:

  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"
0

60
0

1,2
00

30
0

Fe
et

1 i
nc

h =
 83

3 f
ee

t

Ja
nu

ary
 20

19

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 P
lan

e C
A I

I F
IP

S 0
40

2
So

urc
e: 

EG
WD

 G
IS 

da
tab

as
e

60 
- 69

.99
93.

81%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
0%

40 
- 49

.99
0.0

0%

Va
lle

y O
ak 

(SS
A 3

)
Ran

ge 
of 

PSI
2.7

6%
>7

0

50 
- 59

.99
3.4

3%

50
77



SS
A4

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

,
Ge

oB
as

e, 
IG

N,
 K

ad
as

ter
 N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
sw

iss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Fe

bru
ary

 7,
 20

19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

4

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
St

ati
on

 Ar
ea

 3
Sa

mp
le 

St
ati

on
 Ar

ea
 4

Sa
mp

le 
St

ati
on

 Ar
ea

 6

No
te:

  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"
1 i

nc
h =

 1,
02

5 f
ee

t

Ja
nu

ary
 20

19

0
61

0
1,2

20
30

5
Fe

et

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 P
lan

e C
A I

I F
IP

S 0
40

2
So

urc
e: 

EG
WD

 G
IS 

da
tab

as
e

0.0
0%

>7
0

50 
- 59

.99
93.

25%
60 

- 69
.99

6.1
3%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
0%

40 
- 49

.99
0.6

3%

Gla
cie

r P
oin

t (S
SA

4)
Ran

ge 
of 

PSI

51
78



SS
A5 So

urc
es

: E
sri

, H
ER

E,
 G

arm
in,

 In
ter

ma
p, 

inc
rem

en
t P

 C
orp

., G
EB

CO
, U

SG
S,

 FA
O,

 N
PS

, N
RC

AN
,

Ge
oB

as
e, 

IG
N,

 K
ad

as
ter

 N
L, 

Or
dn

an
ce

 S
urv

ey
, E

sri
 Ja

pa
n, 

ME
TI,

 E
sri

 C
hin

a (
Ho

ng
 K

on
g),

sw
iss

top
o, 

© 
Op

en
St

ree
tM

ap
 co

ntr
ibu

tor
s, 

an
d t

he
 G

IS 
Us

er 
Co

mm
un

ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Fe

bru
ary

 7,
 20

19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

5

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 5

No
tes

:  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"
1 i

nc
h =

 42
1 f

ee
t

Ja
nu

ary
 20

19

0
28

0
56

0
14

0
Fe

et

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 P
lan

e C
A I

I F
IP

S 0
40

2
So

urc
e: 

EG
WD

 G
IS 

da
tab

as
e

0.0
0%

>7
0

50 
- 59

.99
93.

19%
60 

- 69
.99

6.1
2%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
0%

40 
- 49

.99
0.6

9%

Am
sde

n (
SSA

 5)
Ran

ge 
of 

PSI

52
79



SS
A6

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

,
Ge

oB
as

e, 
IG

N,
 K

ad
as

ter
 N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
sw

iss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Fe

bru
ary

 7,
 20

19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

6

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 2

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 3

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 5

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 6

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 7

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 8

No
te:

  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"
1 i

nc
h =

 81
9 f

ee
t

Ja
nu

ary
 20

19

0
50

0
1,0

00
25

0
Fe

et

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 P
lan

e C
A I

I F
IP

S 0
40

2
So

urc
e: 

EG
WD

 G
IS 

da
tab

as
e

60 
- 69

.99
3.9

3%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
0%

40 
- 49

.99
1.7

1%

Ran
cho

 (SS
A 6

)
Ran

ge 
of 

PSI
0.0

0%
>7

0

50 
- 59

.99
94.

35%

53
80



SS
A7

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

,
Ge

oB
as

e, 
IG

N,
 K

ad
as

ter
 N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
sw

iss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Fe

bru
ary

 7,
 20

19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

7

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
St

ati
on

 Ar
ea

 6
Sa

mp
le 

St
ati

on
 Ar

ea
 7

Sa
mp

le 
St

ati
on

 Ar
ea

 8
Sa

mp
le 

St
ati

on
 Ar

ea
 10

No
te:

  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"
0

60
0

1,2
00

30
0

Fe
et

1 i
nc

h =
 83

3 f
ee

t

Ja
nu

ary
 20

19

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
 

NA
D 

83
 St

ate
 P

lan
e C

A I
I F

IP
S 0

40
2

So
urc

e: 
EG

WD
 G

IS 
da

tab
as

e

60 
- 69

.99
45.

35%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
0%

40 
- 49

.99
0.0

0%

Ma
inl

ine
 (SS

A 7
)

Ran
ge 

of 
PSI

51.
37%

>7
0

50 
- 59

.99
3.2

8%

54
81



SS
A8 So

urc
es

: E
sri

, H
ER

E,
 G

arm
in,

 In
ter

ma
p, 

inc
rem

en
t P

 C
orp

., G
EB

CO
, U

SG
S,

 FA
O,

 N
PS

, N
RC

AN
,

Ge
oB

as
e, 

IG
N,

 K
ad

as
ter

 N
L, 

Or
dn

an
ce

 S
urv

ey
, E

sri
 Ja

pa
n, 

ME
TI,

 E
sri

 C
hin

a (
Ho

ng
 K

on
g),

sw
iss

top
o, 

© 
Op

en
St

ree
tM

ap
 co

ntr
ibu

tor
s, 

an
d t

he
 G

IS 
Us

er 
Co

mm
un

ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Fe

bru
ary

 7,
 20

19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

8

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
St

ati
on

 Ar
ea

 5
Sa

mp
le 

St
ati

on
 Ar

ea
 6

Sa
mp

le 
St

ati
on

 Ar
ea

 7
Sa

mp
le 

St
ati

on
 Ar

ea
 8

No
te:

  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"

0
65

0
1,3

00
32

5
Fe

et

Ja
nu

ary
 20

19

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 P
lan

e C
A I

I F
IP

S 0
40

2
So

urc
e: 

EG
WD

 G
IS 

da
tab

as
e

60 
- 69

.99
86.

48%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
0%

40 
- 49

.99
0.1

3%

Ho
llo

w S
pri

ngs
 (SS

A 8
)

Ran
ge 

of 
PSI

0.0
1%

>7
0

50 
- 59

.99
13.

38%

55
82



SS
A9

SS
A1

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

,
Ge

oB
as

e, 
IG

N,
 K

ad
as

ter
 N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
sw

iss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Fe

bru
ary

 7,
 20

19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

9

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 1

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n A

rea
 9

No
te:

  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"
0

64
0

1,2
80

32
0

Fe
et

1 i
nc

h =
 85

3 f
ee

t

Ja
nu

ary
 20

18

Pr
oje

cte
d c

oo
rdi

na
te 

sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 Pl
an

e C
A I

I F
IPS

 04
02

So
urc

e: 
EG

WD
 G

IS 
da

tab
as

e

99.
98%

>7
0

50 
- 59

.99
0.0

0%
60 

- 69
.99

0.0
2%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
0%

40 
- 49

.99
0.0

0%

Bla
ckm

an 
(SS

A 9
)

Ran
ge 

of 
PSI

56
83



SS
A1

0

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 G
arm

in,
 In

ter
ma

p, 
inc

rem
en

t P
 C

orp
., G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

,
Ge

oB
as

e, 
IG

N,
 K

ad
as

ter
 N

L, 
Or

dn
an

ce
 S

urv
ey

, E
sri

 Ja
pa

n, 
ME

TI,
 E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
sw

iss
top

o, 
© 

Op
en

St
ree

tM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

Elk
 G

ro
ve

 W
ate

r D
ist

ric
t

Sy
ste

m 
Pr

es
su

re 
Mo

nit
ori

ng
Cr

ea
ted

 by
: T

rav
is 

Fra
nk

lin
Fe

bru
ary

 7,
 20

19

Sa
mp

le 
Sta

tio
n #

10

Le
ge

nd
" Îi

Sa
mp

lin
g S

tat
ion

Sa
mp

le 
St

ati
on

 Ar
ea

 4
Sa

mp
le 

St
ati

on
 Ar

ea
 6

Sa
mp

le 
St

ati
on

 Ar
ea

 7
Sa

mp
le 

St
ati

on
 Ar

ea
 10

No
te:

  S
am

ple
 St

ati
on

 ta
ke

s a
 re

ad
ing

ev
ery

 5 
mi

nu
tes

.

"
0

60
0

1,2
00

30
0

Fe
et

1 i
nc

h =
 83

3 f
ee

t

Ja
nu

ary
 20

19
So

urc
e: 

EG
WD

 G
IS 

da
tab

as
e

Pr
oje

cte
d C

oo
rdi

na
te 

Sy
ste

m:
NA

D 
83

 St
ate

 P
lan

e C
A I

I F
IP

S 0
40

2

60 
- 69

.99
8.2

9%

Sam
ple

 Sta
tio

n A
rea % o

f Ti
me

< 4
0

0.0
0%

40 
- 49

.99
0.0

0%

Ore
o R

anc
h (

SSA
 10

)
Ran

ge 
of 

PSI
91.

68%
>7

0

50 
- 59

.99
0.0

3%

57
84



  AGENDA ITEM No. 5    

February 20, 2019  
 
 
TO:  Chairperson and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM: Bruce M. Kamilos, Assistant General Manager 
 
SUBJECT: TRUCK PURCHASE FOR REPLACEMENT OF TRUCK #407  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors 
authorize the General Manager to execute a purchase order in the amount of $90,489.41, 
including tax and license, with Harrold Ford to purchase a utility truck to replace Truck 
#407. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
  
The replacement of Truck #407 was approved in the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Capital 
Improvement Program (FY 2018-19 CIP).  Per the Florin Resource Conservation District’s 
(FRCD) Purchase of Goods and Services from Outside Vendors Policy, a competitive 
bidding process was used to acquire three (3) bids for a utility truck with a utility box.  The 
lowest priced, qualified, responsible bidder is Harrold Ford with a bid amount of 
$90,489.41. 
 
This action, if approved, would authorize the General Manager to execute a purchase 
order in the amount of $90,489.41 with Harrold Ford for the purchase of a utility truck with 
a utility box. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Background 
 
Truck #407 is a 2008 Ford F-550 that is eleven years old with 25,939 city miles.  The Elk 
Grove Water District’s (EGWD) Asset Management Plan tracks the age of trucks in 
EGWD’s vehicle and equipment fleet, and sets a 10-year replacement cycle on all work 
trucks. 
 
Present Situation 
 
The FRCD Purchase of Goods and Services from Outside Vendors Policy requires that 
major purchases of items costing more than $50,000 be competitively bid and approved 
by the FRCD Board of Directors (Board).  Three (3) bids were obtained for a utility truck 
with a utility box.  The lowest priced, qualified, responsible bidder is Harrold Ford.  The 
bids are summarized below and represent the amounts including tax and license. 

85



February 20, 2019 
 
TRUCK PURCHASE FOR REPLACEMENT OF TRUCK #407  
Page 2 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 5 

 Company Name Bid Amount 

1 Harrold Ford $90,489.41 

2 Elk Grove Ford $92,380.27 

3 Corning Ford $93,685.05 

   

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
There are no environmental considerations associated with the purchase of the truck. 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 
 
The recommendation made in this staff report conforms to the FRCD/EGWD’s 2012-2017 
Strategic Plan.  The Strategic Plan, under the Asset Management section, identifies that 
each piece of equipment has a life expectancy for which its replacement shall be planned 
for and carried out. 
 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
 
The financial impact of purchasing the utility truck with a utility box is $90,489.41 including 
tax and license.  The FY 2018-19 CIP budgeted $115,000 for the replacement of Truck 
#407. 
  
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
BRUCE M. KAMILOS 
ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER 

86



AGENDA ITEM No. 6 

February 20, 2019 
 
 
TO:        Chairperson and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM:         Mark J. Madison, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    OUTSIDE AGENCY MEETINGS REPORT  

  

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
This item is presented for information only. No action by the Florin Resource Conservation 
District Board of Directors is proposed at this time.  
 
 
SUMMARY 

 
The Outside Agency Meetings Report is a standing item on the regular board meeting 
agenda. 
 
Staff and Board members attended numerous outside agency meetings since the last 
regular Board meeting. This report is intended to inform the Board of any substantive 
content included in those meetings that potentially affects the Elk Grove Water District. 
 

 

DISCUSSION 

 
Background 
 
Per the Board’s direction during the February 21, 2018 Board meeting, staff will report on 
the outside agency meetings that occurred since the previous Board meeting.  This report 
has been designed to list the notable meetings attended, by either staff or Board 
members, and the report will be given orally by the staff or Board members in attendance. 
 
Present Situation 
 
The notable outside agency meetings attended since January 16, 2019 were as follows: 
 
2/1   ACWA State Legislative Committee Meeting          (Jones) 
2/7   Annual Safety Symposium             (Jones) 
2/13   SCGA Meeting        (Madison, Kamilos) 
2/13   Regional Water Reliability Plan Meeting        (Kamilos) 
 
Staff will orally present the major content items addressed in these meetings during the 
regular Board meeting. 
 

87



  February 20, 2019 
 

OUTSIDE AGENCY MEETINGS REPORT   

Page 2 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 6 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

 

There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report. 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 

 
The District’s Strategic Plan addresses responsible business practices and the 
importance of providing the community with safe drinking water. Specifically, the Plan 
recommends an ongoing goal of partnering with RWA and other regional organizations.  
Attendance at these meetings, and this monthly report, assists the District in maintaining 
sound business practices, delivering safe drinking water, and meeting all regulatory and 
legal requirements.  
 

 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

 
There is no financial impact associated with this report. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
MARK J. MADISON 
GENERAL MANAGER 
 
MJM/mm 
 
 

88



AGENDA ITEM No. 7 
 

February 20, 2019 
 
  

TO:  Chairperson and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM: Sarah Jones, Program Manager  
 
SUBJECT: LEGISLATIVE UPDATE   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
This item is presented for information only. No action by the Florin Resource Conservation 
District Board of Directors is proposed at this time. 
 

 
SUMMARY 
 

There are several bills introduced in the 2019-2020 legislative session that could 
potentially impact Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District 
(FRCD/EGWD) and the deadline for submitting new bills is February 22, 2019. 
 
Governor Newsom has proposed language similar to the previous “water tax” bill, SB 623, 
for inclusion in the state’s proposed budget, which is contrary to the Association of 
California Water Agencies (ACWA) proposal to address the funding issue by using 
surplus General Fund monies and creating a state trust. 
 
The Little Hoover Commission also released a summary of their reports completed over 
the past two years. One of the reports recommends that Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) be removed from operating the State Water Project and that it be converted to a 
broader-scale Department of Water Management.   
 
 

DISCUSSION 
 

Background 
 
The Board is periodically updated on legislative and regulatory issues.  
 
Present Situation 
 
February 22, 2019, is the deadline for the introduction of new bills in the 2019-2020 
legislative session. Summarized below are several bills that have already been proposed 
which may, if passed, impact the FRCD/EGWD. 
 
On January 10, 2019, Governor Newsom released his proposed budget for Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2019-20 that includes a proposal for a Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund. 
Revenue for the fund would be collected through a statewide tax on drinking water and 

89



February 20, 2019 
 
LEGISLATIVE UPDATE   
Page 2 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 7 
 

an assessment on fertilizer sales and dairies. The final budget is slated for approval by 
June 15, 2019.  This proposal is similar to the previous “water tax bill, SB 623, which died 
in 2018. 
 

The California State Assembly hosted a joint informational hearing on February 6, 2019 
on the topic of safe and affordable Drinking Water. The hearing included committee 
members from Assembly Water, Parks & Wildlife Committee, the Assembly 
Environmental Safety & Toxic Materials Committee, and Assembly Budget Subcommittee 
No. 3. Senator Monning, who previously introduced SB 623, was a presenter at the 
hearing where he discussed a spot bill that he authored, SB 200, which has language 
similar to SB 623.  
 

At the joint hearing ACWA introduced a proposal that would fund safe drinking water 
through a state trust. The majority of comments made by water agencies during the public 
comment period was to express support of the trust and opposition of a water tax.  Other 
bills and amendments related to funding and implementing a statewide safe and 
affordable drinking program, such as ACA 3, AB 134, AB 217 and SB 200 were also 
discussed and summarized below. The joint hearing was informational in nature, no vote 
or other action was taken during the meeting.  
 

On February 7, 2019, The Little Hoover Commission released the 2017-18 edition of its 
biennial Economy and Efficiency Report (Attached), which includes a summary of past 
recommendations, implementation progress during the past two years and follow-up 
recommendations. In the category of Natural Resources and Water, the commission 
recommended that California remove the State Water Project from DWR and state 
government control. It further recommends that DWR be converted into a broader-scale 
Department of Water Management that retains all functions of DWR, plus oversees water 
rights. The report also recommends improving oversight and transparency in special 
districts. Recommendations include removing unnecessary obstacles imposed by 
lawmakers, improved transparency on district websites and standardizing current 
reporting requirements on revenues, expenditures and reserves.  
 

AB 134 (Bloom) Safe, clean, affordable and accessible drinking water. Reaffirms 
legislative intent that access to safe, clean, affordable, and accessible drinking water is a 
right for all Californians. It notes the intent of the Legislature to adopt policies that will 
ensure that this right is realized by all Californians. The intent language speaks to 331 
public water systems identified by the State Water Resources Control Board (Water 
Board) as being in violation of water quality standards.  
AB 196 (Gonzalez) Paid family leave.  Current law establishes, within the state disability 
insurance program, a family temporary disability insurance program, also known as the 
paid family leave program, for the provision of wage replacement benefits to workers who 
take time off work to care for a seriously ill family member or to bond with a minor child 

90



February 20, 2019 
 
LEGISLATIVE UPDATE   
Page 3 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 7 
 

within one year of birth or placement, as specified. This bill would state the Legislature’s 
intent to enact legislation that would expand the paid family leave program in order to 
provide a 100% wage replacement benefit for workers earning $100,000 or less annually. 
 

AB 203 (Salas) Occupational safety and health: Valley Fever.  Would require 
construction employers engaging in specified work activities or vehicle operation in 
counties where Valley Fever is endemic to provide effective awareness training on Valley 
Fever to all potentially exposed employees annually and before an employee begins work 
that is reasonably anticipated to cause substantial dust disturbance. The bill would require 
the training to cover specific topics and would authorize the training to be included in the 
employer’s injury and illness prevention program training or as a standalone training 
program. 
 
AB 217 (Garcia, Eduardo) Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund.  Would 
establish the Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund in the State Treasury and would 
provide that moneys in the fund are available, upon appropriation by the Legislature, to 
the board to provide a stable source of funding to secure access to safe drinking water 
for all Californians, while also ensuring the long-term sustainability of drinking water 
service and infrastructure. 
 
AB 231 (Mathis) California Environmental Quality Act: exemption: recycled 
water.  Would exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) a project to 
construct or expand a recycled water pipeline for the purpose of mitigating drought 
conditions for which a state of emergency was proclaimed by the Governor if the project 
meets specified criteria. Because a lead agency would be required to determine if a 
project qualifies for this exemption, this bill would impose a state-mandated local program. 
The bill would also exempt from CEQA the development and approval of building 
standards by state agencies for recycled water systems. 
 
ACA 3 (Mathis) Water: minimum funding guarantee.  Would additionally require, 
commencing with the 2021–22 fiscal year, not less than 2% of specified state revenues 
to be set apart for the payment of principal and interest on bonds authorized pursuant to 
the Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014; water supply, 
delivery, and quality projects administered by the department, and water quality projects 
administered by the state board, as provided. 
 
SB 1 (Atkins) California Environmental, Public Health, and Workers Defense Act of 
2019. Would maintain the same standards of environmental protection provided for a 
number of federal laws that were in place before the Trump administration began on 
January 20, 2017, including baseline provisions of the Clean Water Act and Safe Drinking 
Water Act. The bill would provide implementing procedures for the acts to be instituted as 

91



February 20, 2019 
 
LEGISLATIVE UPDATE   
Page 4 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 7 
 

they existed the day before Trump took office with the goal of preventing the erosion of 
the base of environmental laws in California.  
 

SB 13 (Wieckowski) Accessory Dwelling Units. This bill would express the intent of 
the Legislature to enact legislation that would reduce impact fees and other existing 
barriers for homeowners seeking to establish an Accessory Dwelling Unit on their 
property. This is currently a spot bill and it is unclear whether or not the bill will be a vehicle 
for a third attempt at prohibiting a local agency from imposing a connection fee or capacity 
charge for water. 
 

SB 45 (Allen) Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020.  Would 
enact the Wildfire, Drought, and Flood Protection Bond Act of 2020, which, if approved 
by the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds in an unspecified amount pursuant 
to the State General Obligation Bond Law to finance projects to restore fire damaged 
areas, reduce wildfire risk, create healthy forest and watersheds, reduce climate impacts 
on urban areas and vulnerable populations, protect water supply and water quality, 
protect rivers, lakes, and streams, reduce flood risk, protect fish and wildlife from climate 
impacts, improve climate resilience of agricultural lands, and protect coastal lands and 
resources. 
 

SB 46 (Jackson) State government: emergency services.  Current law authorizes 
each county, including a city and county, to enter into an agreement to access the contact 
information of resident accountholders through the records of a public utility or other 
agency responsible for water service, waste and recycling services, or other property-
related services for the sole purpose of enrolling county residents in a county-operated 
public emergency warning system. Current law requires any county that enters into such 
an agreement to include procedures to enable any resident to opt out of the warning 
system and a process to terminate the receiving agency’s access to the resident’s contact 
information. Current law prohibits the use of the information gathered for any purpose 
other than for emergency notification. This bill would expand these provisions to authorize 
a city to enter into an agreement to access the contact information of resident 
accountholders through the records of a public utility as specified. 
 
SB 53 (Wilk) Open meetings.  Would specify that the definition of “state body” includes 
an advisory board, advisory commission, advisory committee, advisory subcommittee, or 
similar multimember advisory body of a state body that consists of 3 or more individuals, 
as prescribed, except a board, commission, committee, or similar multimember body on 
which a member of a body serves in his or her official capacity as a representative of that 
state body and that is supported, in whole or in part, by funds provided by the state body, 
whether the multimember body is organized and operated by the state body or by a 
private corporation. 
 

92



February 20, 2019 
 
LEGISLATIVE UPDATE   
Page 5 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 7 
 

SB 134 (Hertzberg) Water conservation: water loss performance standards: 
enforcement.  Current law authorizes the Water Board to issue information orders, 
written notices, and conservation orders to an urban retail water supplier that does not 
meet its urban water use objective, and existing law authorizes the board to impose civil 
liability for a violation of an order or regulation issued pursuant to these provisions, as 
specified. Current law requires the board, no earlier than January 1, 2019, and no later 
than July 1, 2020, to adopt rules requiring urban retail water suppliers to meet 
performance standards for the volume of water losses. This bill would prohibit the board 
from imposing liability for a violation of the performance standards for the volume of water 
losses except as part of the enforcement of an urban water use objective. 
 
SB 200 (Monning) Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund. This bill would establish 
the Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund in the State Treasury and would provide 
that moneys in the fund are available, upon appropriation by the Legislature, to the board 
to provide a stable source of funding to secure access to safe drinking water for all 
Californians, while also ensuring the long-term sustainability of drinking water service and 
infrastructure. 
 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 
  
There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report.    
 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 
 
Tracking active legislation complies with the District’s Regulatory Compliance goals of the 
2012-2017 Strategic Plan.  
 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
 
There is no direct financial impact associated with this report. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
SARAH JONES  
PROGRAM MANAGER 
 

Attachment 

93



Report #246, February 2019

Little Hoover Commission
Dedicated to Promoting Economy and 

Efficiency in California State Government

The Economy & 
Efficiency Report

2017-18

The Little Hoover Commission’s Biennial Review 
of California State Government Operations

94

AKavert
Typewritten text
Attachment



1 Letter from the Chair
Chairman Pedro Nava provides an overview of the Commission’s biennial report.

2 About the Commission
The Commission’s purpose, responsibilities and history.

3 A Recap of Commission Work in 2017-18
Reports and recommendations issued during the last two-year session.

6 Study Process
The Commission’s process for selecting research topics, conducting public hearings,  
issuing reports and providing government oversight. 

8 Improvements & Top Opportunities for Reform
Seven major governing arenas requiring continued excellence in state government. 

11 Meet our Team
A list of current and former Commissioners and staff.  

13 In Remembrance
Remembering former Executive Director Carole D’Elia and Research Analyst Matthew Gagnon.

Contents

Little Hoover Commission
925 L Street, Suite 805
Sacramento, CA 95814

(916) 445-2125

littlehoover@lhc.ca.gov

www.lhc.ca.gov

Contact Us

                         @CALittleHoover

                         YouTube

                         LinkedIn

Stay Connected

95



1 Economy & Efficiency Report 2017-18  |

Pedro Nava
Chair, Little Hoover Commission

I am pleased to present the Milton Marks “Little Hoover” Commission’s biennial Economy and Efficiency 
Report for 2017-18. Founded in 1962, the Commission is charged with assisting the Governor and Legislature 
in promoting economy, efficiency, and improved services in state government. 

The Commission is uniquely positioned to fill this vital role. We are a bipartisan body—no more than 7 of 
the 13 members can be from the same political party—with a unique composition—nine citizen members, 
two Senators, and two Assembly members—that provides a broad spectrum of views, knowledge and 
skills. In conducting studies, the Commission consults with experts, knowledgeable professionals and 
stakeholders in private industry, government and academia; holds formal hearings; conducts informal 
advisory meetings; makes site visits; and uses various research methods. 

Over the past two years, the Commission has issued nine reports. Among its recommendations, the 
Commission encouraged state leaders to develop robust policies, and state government infrastructure, for 
the development and use of artificial intelligence; called for an end to the disastrous cycles of wildfires and 
tree deaths and proposed profound cultural changes in the way forests are managed; pressed for much 
needed reform and improvements to Denti-Cal, a vital Medi-Cal program that provides dental services 
to low-income adults and children; urged increased statewide and local bond oversight; and suggested 
greater self-sufficiency in the state’s veterans homes program and less reliance on the General Fund to free 
up resources to serve more California veterans, particularly those incapable of caring for their own health. 

The Commission saw many of its recommendations considered and enacted into law. Those achievements 
were due in large part to the hard work and dedication of our talented staff. 

Sadly, though, we said farewell to two beloved colleagues during this period. Matthew Gagnon was a 
research analyst who was instrumental in ensuring that Commission studies were thoughtful, thorough and 
accurate. Executive Director Carole D’Elia was a profoundly gifted leader, writer and editor who had keen 
insight and commitment to the Commission’s mission. She devoted countless hours to making sure the 
Commission’s work was of the highest quality. They are both greatly missed and remain true inspirations 
to us all.

We take great pride in assisting state government leaders and lawmakers in their efforts to improve and 
enhance California. Therefore, on behalf of the Commission, I invite you to take this opportunity to review 
this report and learn more about our efforts and accomplishments. I trust you will agree that the Commission 
has contributed meaningfully to building a more efficient, effective and organized state government.

The Economy & Efficiency Report
Letter from the Chair

96



Purpose & Responsibilities
The Commission has broad, independent authority to 
evaluate the state’s services, activities and functions, 
along with the policies and methods for appropriating and 
administering funds. The Commission also has the legal 
responsibility to review and make recommendations on 
reorganization plans initiated by the Governor.

Unlike fiscal or performance audits, which focus on 
compliance, the Commission’s studies explore how 
state governmental entities can and should function. 
Commission reports and recommendations are developed 
through extensive research and interviews of experts and 
knowledgeable professionals, academics and stakeholders. 
In conducting its work, the Commission focuses on how 
state government can:

	Improve outcomes.

	Increase transparency.

	Reduce spending without sacrificing services. 

	Eliminate redundant services.

	Consolidate services or abolish, create and reorganize 
departments or programs to better meet the needs of 
Californians.

The Commission has issued hundreds of recommendations 
on such topics as:

Governor’s Reorganization Plans
The Commission is responsible for reviewing all 
gubernatorial reorganization plans, which may be used to 
consolidate, transfer or abolish programs and agencies, or 
to create new agencies. The Governor has the authority to 
examine the organization of executive branch agencies and 
execute changes to promote better government services 
through a Governor’s Reorganization Plan. The Governor 
must submit any reorganization plan to the Commission 
at least 30 days prior to submitting the plan to the 
Legislature. The Commission assesses the plan based on its 
broad mandate to assist lawmakers in promoting economy, 
efficiency and improved service in the transaction of the 
public business. Based on its assessment, the Commission 
develops recommendations as to whether or not it 
believes the reorganization plan should go into effect and 
occasionally offers recommendations to strengthen the 
plan. It offers its conclusions and recommendations in a 
report to the Governor and the Legislature within 30 days 
of the plan being submitted to the Legislature. 

History of the Commission
The Commission’s name and function derive from the 
federal Commission on Organization of the Executive 
Branch of the Government, which operated between 
1947-1949 under the Truman Administration and 
again between 1953-1955 under the Eisenhower 
Administration. Former president Herbert Hoover 
chaired this commission, resulting in the nickname 
“Hoover Commission.” The members were 
appointed by the President and Congress to create 
bipartisan solutions to increase the efficiency of the 
administration structures in the executive branch. 

To replicate the success of the “Hoover Commission,” 
California State Senator Milton Marks in 1961 
proposed an organization dedicated to promoting 
economy, efficiency and improved service in 
California’s governing structure. The organization 
later was renamed the Milton Marks Little Hoover 
Commission on California State Government 
Organization and Economy to pay homage to both 
the original Hoover Commission and Senator Marks. 

2 |  Little Hoover Commission

About the Commission
The Milton Marks “Little Hoover Commission” on California State Government Organization and Economy has served as 
an independent voice for government reform, advising the Governor and Legislature for more than 56 years. 

Education

Energy, Environment 
& Resources

General Government

Health & Human 
Services

Infrastructure

Public Safety

97



3 Economy & Efficiency Report 2017-18  |

Borrowed Money: Opportunities for Stronger Bond Oversight
(Report #236, February 2017)

Urges better and more consistent oversight of California’s more than $1.5 trillion in bond 
debt to pay for schools, roads and other public works projects. Proposes a framework for 
oversight of all state bonds, in addition to better access to information on all statewide 
bond spending online. Also finds that local bond oversight groups often lack of financial 
expertise and limited authority. Recommends the dissemination of training materials to 
bond oversight committees, stronger oversight by county treasurers before bonds are 
renewed, and overhauling the Strict Accountability in Local School Construction Bonds 
Act of 2000.

A New Approach to California’s Veterans Homes
(Report #237, March 2017)

Calls for policymakers to evaluate the effectiveness of California’s veteran homes 
program. Finds that the veterans program makes up 80 percent of the California 
Department of Veterans Affairs’ (CalVet) budget, but fewer than one percent of the 
state’s 1.7 million veterans benefit from it. Also finds declining demand for independent 
living programs, but increasing need for skilled nursing and memory care services. 
Recommends systematic evaluation of the veterans home program and a bold strategy to 
more equitably distribute limited resources to more of the state’s veterans. Recommends 
that CalVet should evaluate best use by prioritizing need. Also recommends that CalVet 
should gradually eliminate domiciliary programs to focus on skilled nursing care and use 
savings to develop additional home- and community-based veteran’s services. 

Improving State Permitting for Local Climate Change Adaption Projects
(Report #238, June 2017)

Urges reducing unnecessary delays in state permitting of local government projects 
designed to improve California’s resiliency against climate change. Finds that state 
permitting is necessary to protect California’s environmental resources, but excessive 
bureaucracy in agencies means that climate adaptation permitting can take many 
months or years to complete. Delays are often due to inadequate staffing levels, lack 
of permitting training, and applicants submitting incomplete permits. Recommends 
establishing agency round tables so permitting agencies can communicate with clients 
to identify potential obstacles and streamline the permitting processes; requiring state 
permitting agencies to develop detailed guides for expectations and requirements for 
permit applications; and, establishing a formal dispute resolution process. 

A Little Hoover Commission Letter Report
to  the Governor and Legislature of California

BORROWED MONEY: OPPORTUNITIES  
FOR STRONGER BOND OVERSIGHT

Report #236, February 2017 

A New Approach to  
California’s Veterans Homes

REPORT #237, MARCH 2017

LITTLE HOOVER COMMISSION
DEDICATED TO PROMOTING ECONOMY AND

EFFICIENCY IN CALIFORNIA STATE GOVERNMENT

A Little Hoover Commission Letter Report
to  the Governor and Legislature of California

Improving State Permitting for  
Local Climate Change Adaptation Projects

Report #238, June 2017 

A Recap of Commission Work in 2017-2018

98



4 |  Little Hoover Commission

Special Districts: Improving Oversight and Transparency
(Report #239, March 2017)

Calls for improved oversight of special districts by removing unnecessary barriers 
to dissolution, improving transparency, and standardizing fiscal reporting. Special 
districts provide vital services ranging from fire protection to water and cemeteries to 
sewers, and are on the frontline of climate adaption planning in their communities. 
Finds that the agencies charged with oversight are not uniformly effective and basic 
information on all special districts is not readily available. Recommends lawmakers 
eliminate unnecessary obstacles for special district dissolutions and consolidations to 
improve services; improve transparency by requiring every district to have a website 
with basic information; and, standardizing current reporting requirements on revenues, 
expenditures and reserves. 

Transforming Yountville Veterans Home Campus
(Report #240, September 2017)

Urges lawmakers to immediately address the inadequate infrastructure issues at the 
Yountville Veterans Home that undermine the dignity and care for the veterans housed 
there, while also developing a long-term plan to modernize and creatively use the 
expansive Yountville campus. Recommends that California establish an independent 
organization to transform the Yountville campus through innovative design and creative, 
long-term financing agreements that could generate revenue for other veterans services 
statewide
.

Letter to Governor Brown and Legislature: Denti-Cal Program Still Broken
(Report #241, November 2017)

Urges the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) to do more to prioritize access to critical dental services 
and preventative oral care for communities throughout the state. Finds the Denti-Cal program fell short in 
making strides toward the legislature’s 60 percent utilization target meant to increase the number of eligible 
children who use their benefits to make annual visits. Recommends DHCS do more to provide data collection 
and reporting information necessary to evaluate progress toward the legislature’s utilization goal and to 
explain overall program performance and administrative improvements. 

Fire on the Mountain: Rethinking Forest Management in the Sierra Nevada
(Report #242, February 2018)

Urges California to stop reactively responding to devastating fires, disease and insect 
infestation, and to shift to long-term forest restoration and management. Recommends 
the state’s fire policy incorporate prescribed fire as a tool to create and maintain healthy 
forests. Also recommends greater collaboration among state, federal and local agencies, 
private industry, conservationist organizations and local stakeholders. Recommends 
California bolster demand for its own wood products and develop a long-term bioenergy 
plan with measures to mitigate any negative impacts from the path the state chooses. 
Finally, recommends regular reporting on the Forest Carbon Plan to hold the state 
accountable to its forest management goals. 

Milton Marks Commission on California State Government Organization and Economy
Letter Report to the Governor and Legislature of California

Transforming the Yountville Veterans Home Campus
Report #240, September 2017

Milton Marks Commission on California State Government Organization and Economy

Special Districts:  
Improving Oversight & Transparency
Report #239, August 2017

Milton Marks Commission on California State Government Organization and Economy

Fire on the Mountain: Rethinking Forest 
Management in the Sierra Nevada
Report #242, February 2018

99



5 Economy & Efficiency Report 2017-18  |

Letter to Governor Brown and Legislature on Denti-Cal Update
(Report #243, September 2018)

Continues calls for improved access and administration of Denti-Cal. Finds that data from the Department 
of Health Care Services (DHCS) continue to show a decrease in provider enrollment. Limited access to 
providers can result in delayed treatment, or at worst, the development of preventable childhood tooth 
decay. Recommends better education about dental health and how to access oral health care through 
Denti-Cal. Also recommends consistent and sustainable Denti-Cal funding, enhanced communications from 
DHCS to Denti-Cal providers, and improved reporting of Denti-Cal program data. 

Letter to Governor Brown and Legislature on Voter Participation in New Motor Voter Program
(Report #244, October 2018)

Calls for independent audit of the new Motor Voter Program. Finds more than 1.4 million eligible voters 
opt out of registering to vote or fail to complete their registration through the program administered by 
the Department of Motor Vehicles. Recommends the Secretary of State engage in activities to learn why 
so many eligible Californians opt out of registering to vote and also measure the effectiveness and cost 
efficiency of existing outreach efforts to eligible voters.

Artificial Intelligence: A Roadmap for California
(Report #245, November 2018)

Urges policymakers to act swiftly to create an artificial intelligence (AI) framework that 
promotes the ethical development and use AI for economic, social and environmental 
good. Finds that AI technology and applications have nearly limitless potential to 
improve substantively lives, jobs, businesses, health care, government services, 
education and more. Yet California, the 5th largest economy in the world, lacks an 
infrastructure, plan or measures to take advantage of the opportunities – and minimize 
the risks – associated with AI. Recommends the Governor and Legislature adopt 
artificial intelligence policies and establish state government infrastructure necessary to 
harness the power of AI for the public good.

Commissioners, staff and advisory committee members discuss the viability of forest bioenergy as a 
forest management tool (August 2017).

Milton Marks Commission on California State Government Organization and Economy

Artificial Intelligence: A Roadmap for California
Report #245, November 2018

100



6 |  Little Hoover Commission

Study Process
The Commission relies on a comprehensive study process to gather information and consider ways to promote economy, 
efficiency and improved service in state government. The Commission’s open process creates an opportunity for the 
public to participate in the policy discourse.

1 Select  
Study Topic 2 Research 3 Public Input

Study topics are generated by the 
public, legislators, Commission staff 
and the Commission’s own areas 
of interest and concerns. Over the 
course of a year, the Commission 
typically selects three to five matters 
to research in depth and may return 
to review the status of findings and 
recommendations made in previous 
studies. The Commission also selects 
Commissioners to serve on the study 
subcommittee. The subcommittee 
works closely with staff during the 
study process.

Under the direction of the study 
subcommittee, staff conducts 
research by such methods as 
collecting data, reviewing news 
articles and other relevant 
documents, and interviewing experts, 
knowledgeable professionals and 
stakeholders. Commissioners and 
staff may also conduct site visits. 

The Commission holds formal public 
hearings, where subject matter 
experts and other stakeholders 
testify and answer questions 
before the Commission. The study 
subcommittee usually conducts 
meetings with knowledgeable and 
interested members of the public, 
whether from private industry, 
state or local governments, or other 
stakeholders. These meetings are 
referred to as advisory committee 
meetings and allow for a more 
informal question-and-answer 
process.

Working With the Commission

The Little Hoover Commission welcomes the opportunity to work with the Governor, legislators and staff and is 
available to:

• LISTEN & RESEARCH:  Consider letters from the Governor, members of the Legislature and others 
requesting future Commission study topics.

• ADVISE:  Brief policymakers and staff on issues researched by the Commission and discuss policy or 
organizational options, past or potential reforms and ideas for legislation.

• SUPPORT:  Offer official support for legislation that implements our recommendations, including writing 
support letters or providing testimony at legislative hearings.

The Commission also maintains an online library of written testimony from participants of its public hearings - a 
valuable resource for policy analysts seeking various viewpoints of an issue from a historical perspective.  All of 
the Commission’s reports are available for download on our website at www.lhc.ca.gov.  

101



7 Economy & Efficiency Report 2017-18  |

4 Evaluate &  
Analyze 5 6 OutreachReview & 

Adopt

Throughout the study process, 
evaluation and analysis of the 
gathered facts is done. Once the 
study has been fully explored, 
a draft report with findings and 
recommendations is prepared.

A draft report is presented to the 
Commission for review, consideration 
and adoption. Commissioners may 
adopt the draft report or determine 
that amendments or changes are 
necessary. After a draft report is 
adopted by the Commission, the final 
report is made public and sent to the 
Governor and Legislature for review 
and consideration. 

 

To encourage and support 
the implementation of its 
recommendations, the Commission 
and staff engage in outreach 
activities, including: 

	Meetings and presentations with 
executive and legislative branch 
officials and staff. Meetings may 
also be held with departments 
and stakeholders. 

	Supporting bills that are based 
on or influenced by Commission 
reports and recommendations. 
The Commission’s chairman 
and executive staff testify at 
legislative hearings and work 
with legislative staff and interest 
groups to advance bills. The 
Commission does not oppose 
bills that are contrary to its 
recommendations. 

	Commissioners may revisit study 
topics to monitor progress made 
and consider whether additional 
review and recommendations 
are necessary. 

The Little Hoover Commission and Legislative Analyst’s Office hold a joint legislative briefing on the findings from recent forest management 
studies (April 2018).

Chairman Pedro Nava talks with Mark Keppler, host of The Maddy Report, about how California 
must move away from a culture of fire suppression and build healthy, resilient forests by using 
fire as a tool (May 2017).

102



8 |  Little Hoover Commission

Business, Professions and Economic Development
Expand economic opportunities. The high cost of education is one barrier to Californians seeking jobs. 
Requirements to practice certain occupations and professions are another. Some people who have worked 
in a job in another state or while serving in the armed forces discover that they are unable to meet licensing 
requirements in California without taking additional classes, gaining additional work experience, or taking 
often-costly exams. Californians of modest means are often the hardest hit. 

One step the state has taken to ease the barrier to entry into occupations is to help Californians with criminal 
convictions ascertain whether it would make sense to spend the time and money working to enter a particular 
profession: AB 2138 (Chiu, Chapter 995, Statues of 2018) authorized licensing boards to post on their 
website a summary of the criteria used to consider whether a crime is considered substantially related to the 
qualifications, functions or duties of the business or profession it regulates. 

More remains to be done, however. In particular, to help the most vulnerable Californians enter licensed 
occupations, the state should dramatically expand the availability of apprenticeship opportunities in which 
people can earn money while gaining hands-on work experience (Report #234).

Create a one-stop shop for businesses in California, including a master business application. Most business 
owners who run afoul of the law in California do so accidentally. To cut down on these mistakes that take 
state resources away from actual lawbreakers and inconvenience business owners, the state should create 
a one-stop shop where entrepreneurs can find all of the information they need to start and run a business 
in California, as well as a master business application that can send the appropriate information to all of the 
relevant regulatory and tax agencies. The Governor’s Office of Business and Economic Development has made 
progress through its California Business Portal, but there still is no master business application (Reports #229, 
#226, #66).

Veterans Affairs
Redefine the role of California’s veterans homes. As recommended by the Commission, lawmakers enacted 
AB 1365 (Reyes, Chapter 509, Statutes of 2017), to require CalVet to submit and post online financial reports 
of veterans homes to the Legislature as well as regularly review the use of each veteran’s home to determine 
how best to use it in the future. 

Still, more is needed to boldly transform the Yountville Veterans Home Campus. California has an once-in-
a-lifetime opportunity to transform the historic 615-acre campus in the heart of Napa Valley in a way that 
honors the history of the campus while simultaneously expanding the state’s ability to serve more veterans 
and meet regional needs. To do so, the state must establish an independent entity to plan, design, and 
manage the use of the property beyond the current veterans home program (Report #240).

During each legislative session, the Commission actively supports bills that would implement its recommendations 
in whole or in part. Some of these bills are highlighted below, along with additional opportunities for lawmakers to 
strengthen California’s ability to respond to its changing economic, health, environmental and educational needs. 

Improvements & Top Opportunities for Reform

103



Governance and Finance
Establish a consistent accountability framework for statewide and local bonds. In the past decade, California 
has seen expanded auditing and improved transparency in some, though not all, departments responsible for 
administering programs funded with bond proceeds. The state should ensure consistent accountability across 
all departments and at all levels of government. Local bond accountability also is imperative due to the sheer 
size of the local debt and the fact that local oversight lags behind the experience and improvements taking 
place at the state level (Reports #236, #201, #197).

Routinely review major regulations. The state should create a look-back mechanism to determine whether 
regulations are still needed and whether they work. It should establish an entity to revisit existing major 
regulations in the event of a fundamental change in conditions. The development of transformative 
technology, a substantial change in economic conditions, demonstration that a regulation is not having its 
intended effect, or the emergence of superseding regulations at the federal level may all warrant such a 
review (Report #209).

Improve oversight and transparency of special districts. Based on a Commission recommendation, 
lawmakers enacted SB 929 (McGuire, Chapter 408, Statues of 2018) to require all special districts to maintain 
a website, to allow the public to understand the services available to them. 

Still, the state can further expand transparency by requiring every special district website to include basic, 
standardized information, such as a description of services provided, governance structure of the district, 
compensation details, and pertinent financial information including revenues, expenditures and reserves 
(Report #239).

Governmental Organization
Improve customer service. Too many Californians distrust state government’s ability to work on their behalf 
and get things done. Government must operate better, faster, and more conveniently for customers accus-
tomed to instant online service in the rest of their lives and who live in a state that is home to the Silicon 
Valley. California government, too, can become a global model for public sector technology and efficiency 
in delivering services. This should begin with implementing customer-centric strategies across agencies and 
departments and creating digital teams to modernize government services (Report #229).

Health and Human Services
Establish a long-term care strategy. As an increasing number of Californians reach retirement age and 
beyond, the state must improve care for low-income, frail seniors, veterans and disabled Californians in their 
homes and communities, avoiding, to the extent possible, the need for nursing home care. California must 
streamline and consolidate state level roles and responsibilities and create a seamless continuum of long-term 
care services (Reports #237 and #205).

Strengthen oversight of dental and mental health programs. The Commission consistently has found a lack 
of transparency in the Department of Health Care Services’ (DHCS) administration of dental and mental 
health programs. Some progress has been made with SB 688 (Moorlach, Chapter 403, Statutes of 2018) to 
make it easier for the public to understand how counties use Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) funds, as 
recommended by the Commission. 

But more must be done to improve the administration of programs within the DHCS. The DHCS must 
dramatically increase efficiencies to ensure that all beneficiaries receive adequate health care (Reports #243, 
#230, #222). It also is critical the DHCS and other state entities to effectively oversee mental health spending 
and ensure the $2 billion in annual revenues from the MHSA are spent as intended (Reports #233, #225).

9 Economy & Efficiency Report 2017-18  |

104



10 |  Little Hoover Commission

Public Safety
Incentivize public-private partnerships for wraparound post-release services. Californians returning from 
jail or prison need a number of services, such as job assistance, housing, and medical, dental, and mental 
health care to help reduce recidivism. California should incentivize counties to expand public-private part-
nerships with qualified organizations to provide services for offenders re-entering the community from jail or 
prison incarceration on mandatory post-release community supervision or on supervised probation (Reports 
#219, #207, #177 #172).

Natural Resources and Water
Fund and conduct collaborative landscape-scale forest management. California’s 2018 fire season is 
another reminder of the importance of funding landscape-scale collaborative forest management. Governor 
Brown took a critical step by forming the Forest Management Task Force in 2018, and lawmakers also have 
enacted important legislation: AB 1956 (Limon, Chapter 632, Statutes of 2018) created a local grant program 
dedicated to multiyear fire prevention activities and landscape adaptation to withstand fires of increasing 
frequency, intensity, and scope. Additionally, SB 1260 (Jackson, Chapter 624, Statutes of 2018) created and 
streamlined opportunities to conduct prescribed burns and to educate the public about them, and enhanced 
air quality and smoke monitoring.

More investment in forest management remains to be done, however, and quickly. While landscape-scale 
collaboration and action will require significant funding up front, in the long run preventative treatments 
should take the place of many of the emergency response costs. Policymakers also must consider how to 
spread the costs of forest management among all of those who benefit from healthy forests (Report #242).

Consolidate water governance. The state’s water management and planning structure, in place since 
1969, is obsolete. It leaves California ill-prepared to address unpredictable precipitation and balance water 
demands of agriculture, a rising population and the environment. The state should remove the State Water 
Project from the Department of Water Resources (DWR) and state government control. It also should 
convert the DWR into a broader-scale Department of Water Management that retains all functions of DWR 
and also oversees water rights (Report #201).

Commissioners and staff visit Blodgett Forest Research Station, operated within the El Dorado National Forest by the University of 
California, Berkeley (April 2017).

105



Chairman Pedro Nava
(D–Santa Barbara)   
Reelected to fourth consecutive term as chair 
in March 2018.  Government relations advisor.  
Former State Assemblymember from 2004 to 
2010.  Former civil litigator, deputy district attorney 
and member of the California Coastal Commission. 
Appointed by Assembly Speaker Emeritus John 
Pérez in April 2013. 

Vice Chairman Sean Varner 
(R–Riverside)  
Reelected to a second consecutive term as vice 
chair in March 2018. Managing partner at Varner 
& Brandt LLP where he practices as a transactional 
attorney focusing on mergers and acquisitions, 
finance, real estate and general counsel work. 
Appointed by Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. in 
April 2016.

David Beier 
(D–San Francisco)  
Managing director of Bay City Capital. Former 
senior officer of Genentech and Amgen. Former 
counsel to the U.S. House of Representatives 
Committee on the Judiciary. Appointed by 
Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. in June 2014.

Iveta Brigis 
(D–Los Gatos)  
Open Sourcing People Operations Program lead at 
Google Inc. since 2014, and looks after re:Work, 
Google’s initiative to open source data-driven 
HR practices. Appointed by Governor Edmund G. 
Brown Jr. in April 2017.

Cynthia Buiza
(DTS–Los Angeles)    
Executive director of the California Immigrant 
Policy Center. Former policy director for the 
American Civil Liberties Union, San Diego and 
policy and advocacy director at the Coalition 
for Humane Immigrant Rights of Los Angeles. 
Appointed by Assembly Speaker Anthony Rendon 
in October 2018.

Bill Emmerson
(NPP–Redlands)  
Former senior vice president of state relations 
and advocacy at the California Hospital 
Association, State Senator from 2010 to 2013, 
State Assemblymember from 2004 to 2010 and 
orthodontist. Appointed by Governor Edmund G. 
Brown Jr. in December 2018.

11 Economy & Efficiency Report 2017-18  |

Assemblymember Chad Mayes
(R–Yucca Valley)
Elected in November 2014 to represent the 42nd 
Assembly District. Former member of the Yucca 
Valley Town Council and mayor. Appointed by 
former Speaker of the Assembly Toni Atkins in 
September 2015.

Assemblymember Bill Quirk
(D–Hayward)  
Elected in November 2012 to represent the 20th 
Assembly District. Former climate change scientist 
at NASA and physicist at the Lawrence Livermore 
National Lab. Appointed by Speaker of the 
Assembly Anthony Rendon in 2017.

Senator Richard Roth
(D–Riverside)
Elected in November 2012 to represent the 31st 
Senate District. Former labor and employment 
attorney and major general in the U.S. Air Force 
Judge Advocate General’s Corps. Appointed by the 
Senate Rules Committee in February 2013.

Cathy Schwamberger
(NPP-Calistoga)  
Associate general counsel for State Farm 
Mutual Automobile Insurance Company. Former 
board member of the Civil Justice Association 
of California and the Capital Political Action 
Committee. Appointed in April 2018 by the Senate 
Rules Committee.

Janna Sidley
(D–Los Angeles)
General counsel at the Port of Los Angeles. 
Former deputy city attorney at the Los Angeles 
City Attorney’s Office, vice president of 
communications at Pallotta Teamworks, and an 
assistant United States attorney of the criminal and 
civil division at the United States Attorney’s Office. 
Appointed by Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. in 
April 2016.

Meet our Team
Commissioners

106



12 |  Little Hoover Commission

Scott Barnett 
(R–San Diego)
February 2016 - June 2017

Senator Anthony Cannella 
(R–Ceres)
January 2014 - December 2018

Jack Flanigan 
(R–Granite Bay)
April 2012 - April 2017

Josh Lafarga
(NPP–Wilmington)
June 2017 - April 2018

Don Perata 
(D–Orinda)
February 2014 - January 2019

Assemblymember Sebastian Ridley-Thomas
(D–Los Angeles)
January 2015 - August 2017

Jonathan Shapiro
(D-Beverly Hills)
April 2010 - March 2017

Helen Torres
(NPP-San Bernardino)
April 2016 - April 2018

Former Commissioners Who Served in 2017-18

Staff

Tamar Foster, Project Manager
Tamar.Foster@lhc.ca.gov

Krystal Beckham, Project Manager
Krystal.Beckham@lhc.ca.gov

Sherry McAlister, Administrative Analyst
Sherry.McAlister@lhc.ca.gov

Julissa de Gonzalez, Research Analyst
Julissa.deGonzalez@lhc.ca.gov

Imran Majid, Research Analyst
Imran.Majid@lhc.ca.gov

Commission staff arrange meetings, conduct research, draft reports, advocate for recommendations and provide 
full-time representation for the Commission. Staff members are available by phone at (916) 445-2125 or by email at:

Commissioners test new voting 
equipment in Los Angeles County 
(September 2017).

Little Hoover Chair Pedro Nava testifies before a joint oversight 
committee on the future of California’s Veterans’ Homes 
(January 2018).

107



13 Economy & Efficiency Report 2017-18  |

In Remembrance

Matthew Gagnon

The Commission laments the loss of Matthew Gagnon, 
who passed away in April 2017. Matt joined the 
Commission in August 2015 as a research analyst. 
Around the office, Matt was known for his cheerful 
attitude and witty sense of humor. He was particularly 
passionate about Denti-Cal and how California could 
offer preventative dental care services for low-income 
children and adults. Matt is fondly remembered and 
missed by his colleagues at the Commission. 

Carole D’Elia

The Commission also mourns the loss of Executive 
Director Carole D’Elia, who passed away in December 
2017. Carole began her career with the Commission in 
2001 and was appointed the executive director in 2013. 
During her tenure, the Commission tackled some of 
the most complicated and important issues facing state 
government, including pensions, corrections, water 
quality, healthcare and long-term care, infrastructure 
and spending. Her work on “Solving California’s 
Corrections Crisis: Time is Running Out” was so well 
respected it was cited in a 2011 U.S. Supreme Court 
decision, Brown v. Plata, which held that California’s 
overcrowded prison system violated prisoners’ Eighth 
Amendment rights. Her leadership and handling of 
“Juvenile Justice Reform: Realigning Responsibilities” 
contributed significantly to the state’s efforts to reform 
both its youth and adult corrections systems after years 
of neglect.

Beyond her role as a public servant, Carole dedicated 
countless hours volunteering locally, serving on 
Sacramento County’s Juvenile Justice and Delinquency 
Prevention Commissions, working with Family Promise, 
which assists homeless families, and coordinating 
Get on the Bus, a program that provides bus trips for 
children to visit their incarcerated mothers.

Carole has left a remarkable legacy of heartfelt 
and dedicated public service. She will always be 
remembered and deeply missed.

108



“Democracy itself is a process of change, and satisfaction 
and complacency are enemies of good government.”

Governor Edmund G. “Pat” Brown,
addressing the inaugural meeting of the Little Hoover Commission,

April 24, 1962, Sacramento, California

109


